Public Document Pack

WOKING

BOROUGH COUNCIL

T

TO THE CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE
PLANNING COMMITTEE

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Planning Committee to be held on Tuesday,
2 February 2021 at 7.00 pm. The meeting will be held virtually and webcast live through the
Council’'s website in accordance with the Coronavirus Act 2020 and The Local Authorities and
Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel
Meetings) (England and Wales) Regulations 2020 (S.1.2020 No. 392).

The agenda for the meeting is set out below.

RAY MORGAN
Chief Executive

NOTE: Filming Council Meetings

Please note the meeting will be filmed and will be broadcast live and subsequently as an archive on the
Council's website (www.woking.gov.uk). The images and sound recording will also be used for training
purposes within the Council. By joining the meeting remotely you are consenting to being filmed.

AGENDA

PART | - PRESS AND PUBLIC PRESENT

1. Minutes

To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Planning Committee held on 12 January 2021
as published.

Apologies for Absence

Declarations of Interest

(i) To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary and other interests from
Members in respect of any item to be considered at the meeting.

(i) In accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct, any Member who is a
Council- appointed Director of a Thameswey Group company will declare a non-
pecuniary interest in any item involving that Thameswey Group company. The
interest will not prevent the Member from participating in the consideration of that
item.

(iii) In accordance with the Officer Procedure Rules, any Officer who is a Council-
appointed Director of a Thameswey Group company will declare an interest in
any item involving that Thameswey Group company. The interest will not prevent
the Officer from advising the Committee on that item.



4. Urgent Business

To consider any business that the Chairman rules may be dealt with under Section 100B(4)
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Matters for Determination

Planning and Enforcement Appeals (Pages 3 - 4)

Planning Applications (Pages 5 - 8)

Section A - Applications for Public Speaking
There are no applications under this section.

Section B - Application reports to be introduced by Officers

6a. 2019/1168 23 Bentham Avenue, Woking (Pages 13 - 46)
6b. 2020/1124 Units 1 & 2 Morris House, Commercial Way, Woking. (Pages 47 - 72)
6¢c. 2020/0805 Glades House, Cemetery Pales, Brookwood, Woking (Pages 73 - 90)

6d. COND/20/0128 9-13 Poole Road, Goldsworth Road and Church Street West, Woking
(Pages 91 - 102)

6e. COND/20/0149 Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking. (Pages 103 - 114)
6f. COND/20/0150 Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking. (Pages 115 - 124)
6g. COND/20/0171 Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking. (Pages 125 - 134)
6h. COND/20/0175 Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking. (Pages 135 - 146)
6i. COND/20/0176 Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking. (Pages 147 - 158)
6j. COND/21/0013 Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking (Pages 159 - 170)

Section C - Application Reports not to be introduced by officers unless requested by a
Member of the Committee

There are no applications under this section.

AGENDA ENDS

Date Published - 25 January 2021

For further information regarding this agenda and e ..

arrangements for the meeting, please contact Becky Mixed Sources
Capon on 01483 743011 or email v g st e e B
becky.capon@woking.gov.uk FSC isttondsieniiipcomar




Agenda Iltem 5

PLANNING COMMITTEE - 2 FEBRUARY 2021
PLANNING AND ENFORCEMENT APPEALS
The Committee is requested to:

RESOLVE:
That the report be noted.

| The Committee has authority to determine the above recommendation. |

Background Papers:

Planning Inspectorate Reports

Reporting Person:

Peter Bryant, Director of Legal and Democratic Services

Date Published:
25 January 2021

APPEALS LODGED

2020/0227
Application for proposed balustrade to form roof
terrace at 8 Thurlton Court Horsell Woking Surrey
GU21 4AU.

2020/0324

Application for erection of raised decking, spa and
fence to side of existing dwelling (retrospective) at
Woodhambury House 491 Woodham Lane Woking
Surrey GU21 5SR.

2019/0753

Application for erection of rooftop extensions to
existing apartment blocks (Blocks A, B, C, D and F)
(known as Nankeville Court, Bradfield House and
Cardinal Place) ranging in height from 1 to 2 storeys
to provide x37 apartments (x24 studio/1 bed and x13
2 bed) together with private and shared roof
terraces. Associated alterations to existing
basement level to provide cycle and refuse/recycling
storage at New Central Development Guildford
Road Woking Surrey GU22 7PU

Refused by Delegated Authority
25 September 2020.

Appeal Lodged

8 January 2021.

Refused by Planning Committee
8 September 2020.

Appeal Lodged

9 December 2020.

Refused by Planning Committee
12 November 2020.

Appeal Lodged

16 December 2020.

APPEAL DECISIONS

2019/0718

Application for Prior approval for change of use of
ground floor from retail (use class A1) to dwelling
houses (use class C3) to create 2no. one bedroom
flats and 1no. studio flat at The Hockey Centre, 151
- 152 Maybury Road Woking Surrey GU21 5JR.

Page 3

Refused by Delegated Authority
9 October 2019.

Appeal Lodged

3 July 2020.

Appeal Allowed

5 January 2021.



2020/0038
An application for an out building at 59 Connaught
Road, Brookwood Woking Surrey GU24 OET.

2019/0768

Application for Erection of 2x two-bedroom single
storey dwellings with associated hard and soft
landscaping following demolition of existing garage
block at Garages and land to rear of Sussex Court,
High Street, Knaphill, Woking, GU21 2QB.

2019/1247
Application for erection of a part single/two storey
side and rear extension and single storey front
extension at 100 Balmoral Drive, WOKING, Surrey,
GU22 8EU.

2019/1035
Application for prior approval for the change of use
from a carpet shop (A1 Use Class) to a residential
unit (C3 Use Class) at 24 Monument Road, Woking,
GU21 5LS.

TREE/2020/8089

Application for 2 x Scots Pine in rear garden - Fell :
(Works subject to TPO 626/0070/1964) 10
Candlerush Close Maybury Woking Surrey GU22
8AT.

Page 4

Refused by Planning Committee
3 June 2020.

Appeal Lodged

30 September 2020.

Appeal Allowed

6 January 2021.

Refused by Planning Committee
10 December 2019.

Appeal Lodged

4 May 2020.

Appeal Dismissed

7 January 2021.

Refused by Delegated Powers
30 July 2020.

Appeal Lodged

27 July 2020.

Appeal Dismissed

12 January 2021.

Refused by Delegated Powers
17 December 2019.

Appeal Lodged

23 June 2020.

Appeal Dismissed

14 January 2021.

Refused by Delegated Powers
3 June 2020.

Appeal Lodged.

Appeal Dismissed

21 January 2021.



Agenda Iltem 6

PLANNING COMMITTEE AGENDA

PLANNING APPLICATIONS AS AT 2N° FEBRUARY 2021

This report contains applications which either fall outside the existing scheme of
delegated powers or which have been brought to the Committee at the request of a
Member or Members in accordance with the agreed procedure (M10/TP 7.4.92/749).
These applications are for determination by the Committee.

This report is divided into three sections. The applications contained in Sections A & B
will be individually introduced in accordance with the established practice. Applications
in Section C will be taken in order but will not be the subject of an Officer’s presentation

unless requested by any Member.

The committee has the authority to determine the recommendations contained
within the following reports.

Key to Ward Codes:

BWB = Byfleet and West Byfleet
GP = Goldsworth Park

HO = Horsell

KNA = Knaphill

PY = Pyrford

Page 5

= Canalside
E = Heathlands
V = Hoe Valley
MH = Mount Hermon
SJS = St. Johns

C
H
H






ITEM

Major Applications Index to Planning Committee

02 February 2021

LOCATION

0006A

0006B

0006C

0006D

0006E

0006F

0006G

0006H

0006l

0006J

23 Bentham Avenue, Sheerwater,
Woking, Surrey, GU21 5LF

Units 1 And 2 Morris House, 34
Commercial Way, Woking, Surrey

Glades House, Cemetery Pales,
Brookwood, Woking, Surrey, GU24
0BL

9 - 13 Poole Road, And Sections Of
Poole Road, Goldsworth Road And
Church Street West, Woking, Surrey

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive,
Sheerwater, Woking, Surrey

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive,
Sheerwater, Woking, Surrey

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive,
Sheerwater, Woking, Surrey

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive,
Sheerwater, Woking, Surrey

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive,
Sheerwater, Woking, Surrey

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive,
Sheerwater, Woking, Surrey

SECTION B - 6A-6J

PER - Grant Planning Permission
REF - Refuse

APP. NO.
PLAN/2019/1168

PLAN/2020/1124

PLAN/2020/0805

COND/2020/0128

COND/2020/0149
COND/2020/0150
COND/2020/0171
COND/2020/0175
COND/2020/0176

COND/2021/0013

Page 7

REC

REF

PER

PER

PER

PER

PER

PER

PER

PER

PER

WARD
C

HE






SECTION A

APPLICATIONS ON WHICH
PUBLIC ARE ELIGIBLE

TO SPEAK

(Note: Ordnance Survey Extracts appended to the reports are for locational
purposes only and may not include all current developments either major or
minor within the site or the area generally)

Page 9






SECTION B
APPLICATIONS WHICH WILL BE
THE SUBJECT OF A PRESENTATION

BY OFFICERS

(Note: Ordnance Survey Extracts appended to the reports are for locational
purposes only and may not include all current developments either major or
minor within the site or area generally)

Page 11






Agenda Iltem 6a

23 Bentham Avenue
Sheerwater, Woking

PLAN/2019/1168

Erection of part two storey, part single storey rear extension and conversion of existing
dwelling (three bedroom) into x2 flats (Amended Description and Plans).

Page 13






ights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100025452. This product is firos
Royal Mail Group Limited and / or Royal Mail Group PLC. All Rights Reserved, Li .
N N LK NN/ ]
T

© Crown copyright and database ri
residence data which is owned by
WAN







2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

6A  PLAN/2019/1168 WARD: C
LOCATION: 23 Bentham Avenue, Sheerwater, Woking, Surrey, GU21 5LF
PROPOSAL: Erection of part two storey, part single storey rear extension and

conversion of existing dwelling (three bedroom) into x2 flats
(Amended Description and Plans).

APPLICANT: Mr Ghulam Ahmed OFFICER:  Barry
Curran

REASON FOR REFERAL TO COMMITTEE

The application has been called to the Planning Committee at the request of
Councillor Aziz as the application falls to be resolved by exercise of planning
judgement.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

The application seeks permission to convert the existing three bedroom family
dwelling into a pair of flats at ground and first floor with the erection of a part two
storey part single storey rear extension.

PLANNING STATUS

e Urban Area
e Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km)

RECOMMENDATION

That planning permission be REFUSED.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The application site is located on the north-eastern side of Bentham Avenue, a
residentially defined area characterised by a mix of two storey semi-detached and
terraced dwellings of a post war design. The application dwelling forms the northern
dwelling on a pair of semi-detached dwellings with the rear amenity space enclosed
by 2 metre high close timber board fencing along with a detached garage on the
neighbouring property along the southern boundary with hedging at 3 metres in
height along the northern boundary.

PLANNING HISTORY

No recent relevant planning history

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

Planning consent is sought for the erection of a part two storey part single storey rear
addition and conversion of the existing dwelling into 2no flats across ground and first
floor.

Page 17



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

SUMMARY INFORMATION

Existing units 1
Proposed units 2
Existing density of site - dwellings/hectare 26 dph
Proposed density of site - dwellings/hectare 52 dph
CONSULTATIONS

County Highways Authority: Recommend a number of conditions in the event of an

approval (06.07.20)

REPRESENTATIONS

There has been 1no third party letter of objection received in relation to the proposed
development. The concerns raised in this letter are summarised as follows;

Impact on parking, parking is already limited so additional visitors to the
property will significantly worsen the bottleneck, where often cars mount and
park on the pavement making it almost inaccessible by both road and foot.
Three parking spaces for a three-and two-bedroom flat is not enough and will
lead to more parking on the road which is severely congested.

The proposed outbuilding could be used as additional living accommodation. |
do not believe that it is necessary for two flats to need a gym, playroom and
WC (Officer Notes: this outbuilding has been removed from proposed plans at
the request of the Planning Officer)

Concern that the proposed side elevation for the extension will overlook our
back garden and compromise privacy (Officer Notes: the proposed first floor
side elevation window has been removed from proposed plans at the request
of the Planning Officer)

The proposed plan indicates overdevelopment of the existing property leading
to increased noise from its multiple inhabitants. Number 23 shares a non-
soundproof wall with Number 21.

The size of the proposed development is out of keeping with nearby
properties.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework 2019

Section 2 - Achieving sustainable development
Section 12 - Achieving well-designed places

Core Strateqgy Document 2012

CS8 - Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area

CS11 - Housing Mix

CS12 — Affordable Housing

CS18 - Transport and accessibility

CS21 - Design

CS24 - Woking’s Landscape and Townscape

CS25 - Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development

Development Management Policies DPD 2016

DM10 — Development on Garden Land
DM11 - Sub-divisions, Specialist Housing, Conversions and Loss of Housing

Page 18



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

Supplementary Planning Guidance

Supplementary Planning Document ‘Parking Standards’ 2018

Supplementary Planning Document ‘Outlook, Amenity, Privacy and Daylight’ 2008
Supplementary Planning Document ‘Design’ 2015

Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance Strategy 2010-2015

PLANNING ISSUES

1. The main planning issues that need to be addressed in the determination of
this application are; principle of development, whether the proposal will have
an unacceptable impact on the character of the existing dwelling and
character of surrounding area, whether the subdivision will result in a
satisfactory residential environment, whether the extensions and subdivision
will materially harm the amenities enjoyed by surrounding neighbours, impact
on parking, sustainability, affordable housing, impact on Thames Basin
Heaths Special Protection Area and local finance considerations.

Principle of Development

2. The National Planning Policy Framework and Policy CS25 of the Woking
Core Strategy 2012 promotes a presumption in favour of sustainable
development. The application site is within a sustainable location within the
defined Urban Area and within the 400m-5km (Zone B) threshold of the
Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area, where the impact of new
residential development can be mitigated.

3. The application involves the proposed subdivision of an existing three
bedroom family dwelling into 2 flats, one with 2-bedrooms and one with 3-
bedrooms. The resulting flats would be self-contained at ground and first floor
level.

4. Policy DM11 (Sub-divisions, Specialist Housing, Conversions and Loss of
Housing) of the Development Management Policies DPD 2016 (hereafter
referred to as the DMP DPD) states that:

‘proposals for...the sub-division of existing dwellings of an appropriate size to
two or more dwellings, including flats...will be permitted provided the following
criteria are met:

e the proposal does not harm the residential amenity or character
of the area (emphasis added);

e a good gquality of accommodation is provided by meeting any
relevant housing standards (emphasis added);

e there would be no detrimental impact on the visual appearance of the
area or that of the building itself;

e any proposed alterations, extensions or additional areas of hard
surfacing required to enable the conversion of the dwelling are
appropriate in scale, form and extent to the site and its surroundings;

e maximum tree cover, mature planting, and screening is retained;

¢ boundary treatment to the street frontage of the property is retained
and a sufficient area of amenity space is retained or provided;

e there is adequate enclosed storage space for recycling/refuse;

Page 19



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

e access is acceptable and parking (including for cycles) is provided on
site in accordance with the Council’s standards. Car parking (including
drop-off points if relevant) will not be permitted in rear gardens or in
locations which might cause a nuisance to adjoining residential
properties;

¢ the traffic impacts of the proposal are considered acceptable;

e the internal layout of the rooms within the proposed conversion will not
cause undue disturbance to adjoining residential properties in the
building;

e appropriate contribution is made to avoid harm to the Thames Basin
Heaths Special Protection Areas, as set out in Core Strategy Policy
CS8, where relevant;

e there is a safe access and egress route during flood events”

5. Much of this criteria relates to material considerations which will be addressed
in detail in the relevant sections of this report. Policy DM11 does, however,
expand on sub-division stating that “In addition to the 'General Criteria' above,
the sub-division of dwellings of an appropriate size to two or more dwellings
will only be permitted where:

e the proposal would not result in an overall loss of a family home; and
e each proposed dwelling has access to a suitable area of private
amenity space” (emphasis added).

6. The Council’'s Supplementary Planning Document ‘Outlook, Amenity, Privacy
and Daylight' 2008 states, in paragraph 4.5, that “family accommodation will
be taken to mean...all flats with two bedrooms of more and exceeding 65
sq.m. gross floor space”. Furthermore Policy CS11 of the Woking Core
Strategy 2012 states that “the Council will not permit the loss of family homes
on sites capable of accommodating a mix of residential units unless there are
overriding policy considerations justifying this loss”. The existing 3 bedroom
house measures approximately 82.4 sq.m in Gross Internal Area (GIA) and,
therefore, provides family accommaodation.

7. Covering a floor area of 83.5 sg.m, the proposed 3 bedroom ground floor flat
falls within the bracket of family accommodation as per the Council’s
Supplementary Planning Document on Outlook. The first floor unit, covering a
floor area of approximately 61.2 sg.m, would not constitute family
accommodation but given that the existing situation involves just one family
dwelling on site and the proposed situation retains a family unit, the loss of
family accommodation is, therefore, strictly mitigated.

8. Policy DM11 of the Development Management Policies DPD 2016 specifically
refers to housing sub-division and notes that the sub-division of dwellings of
an appropriate size to two or more dwellings will only be permitted where
“each proposed dwelling has access to a suitable area of private amenity
space”. In terms of private amenity space, the Council’s Supplementary
Planning Document on ‘Outlook, Amenity, Privacy and Daylight 2008 at
Section 4.7 notes that “In established residential areas, where the existing
pattern of development has a well-defined character, the size, shape and
position of the garden will need to reflect the existing context and be in
proportion to the size of the dwelling proposed”. The suitability of the amenity
space should therefore be reflective of the prevailing pattern. The Outlook
SPD goes on to recommend that “all dwellings designed for family

Page 20



10.

11.

12.

13.

2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

accommodation (as per above) need to provide a suitable sunlit area of
predominantly soft landscaped private amenity space, appropriate in size and
shape for outdoor domestic and recreational needs of the family it is intended
to support”. In this case, the application site is located in a suburban setting
where semi-detached and terraced properties demonstrate commensurate
amenity spaces with narrow yet deep rear gardens.

Impact on Character

One of the principles of planning as identified in the National Planning Policy
Framework 2018 is securing high quality design. Section 12 of the NPPF
refers to the need to plan positively for the achievement of high quality and
inclusive design for all development. Policy CS21 of the Woking Core
Strategy 2012 states that new development should respect and make a
positive contribution to the street scene and the character of the area within
which it is located. Policy CS24 of the Core Strategy states that “all
development proposals will provide a positive benefit in terms of landscape
and townscape character...(and) will be expected to conserve, and where
possible enhance existing character”.

Bentham Avenue is situated within the Sheerwater area of the Borough. This
part of Woking is a Post War residential area with semi-detached and
terraced style properties set on rectangular plots. There is an element of on
street parking, however many of the moderate front gardens have been
converted to accommodate at least one vehicle. The area has a relatively
open feeling and generally low front walls with planting strips behind to define
the boundary. The majority of properties are semi-detached or terraced, two
storeys in height and constructed in facing brick.

Section 4.7 of the SPD on Outlook 2008 states that “In established residential
areas, where the existing pattern of development has a well-defined
character, the size, shape and position of the garden will need to reflect the
existing context and be in proportion to the size of dwelling proposed.” The
subdivision of the dwelling and therefore the plot would result in an
uncharacteristic sized plot and amenity land being unduly and inappropriately
subdivided into two.

Paragraph 127 of the National Planning Policy Framework states that
planning decisions should ensure that developments “are sympathetic to local
character and history, including the surrounding built environment and
landscape setting”. Each surrounding site demonstrates a common layout
with amenity spaces commensurate with the size of the single dwelling on the
plot. Policy CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 states that new
development should “respect and make a positive contribution to the street
scene and the character of the area in which they are situated, paying due
regard to the scale, height, proportions, building lines, layout, materials and
other characteristics of adjoining buildings and land”. The resultant amenity
spaces to serve the flats would measure 60 sg.m and 80 sg.m with the 60
sg.m amenity space serving the ground floor family flat (figures included on
Drawing No0.20/AM/06 A are considered inaccurate and are scaled off the
scale bar attached).

In comparison the neighbouring No.25 Bentham Avenue demonstrates a

private amenity space covering 200 sg.m, No.27 includes 170 sq.m of private
amenity space and the adjoining No.21 which includes one of the smallest

Page 21



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

amenity spaces at 125 sq.m in size more than double that of the amenity
space to serve the ground floor family flat. These are included on a graph for
ease of reference:

Footprint/Floor | Amenity % coverage of
area Space floor-Space/
Footprint

No.25 47 sgm 200 Sgm 23.5%

Bentham

Avenue

No.27 79 Sgm 170 sgm 46%

Bentham

Avenue

No.21 70 sgm 125 sgm 56%

Bentham

Avenue

Application 98 sgm 60 sgm 163%

Plot 1 GF

Application 61 sgm 80 sgm 76%

Plot 2 FF

14. As demonstrated, the proposed amenity spaces to serve both flats are

15.

16.

incommensurate with the prevailing character and bear no adherence to the
prevailing context and would stand out as irregular and out of character in the
area. The proposed layout would, therefore, fail to correspond with the
surrounding area standing out as alien which fail to reflect the prevailing grain
and pattern of development in Bentham Avenue.

It is proposed to erect a part two storey part single storey rear extension to
measure 6.8 metres in width including a single storey addition which would
span the width of the host dwelling and project 7 metres from the rear building
line. Atop this single storey section would be a two storey extension which is
proposed to be set down 0.6 metres from the existing ridge line and measure
a 5.3 metres in width and 4 metres in depth set in from the shared southern
boundary. The extension, as such, would match the footprint of the existing
dwelling both covering approximately 48 sq.m thereby doubling the footprint
of the building similar to erecting another detached dwelling on its rear
elevation albeit with a smaller first floor element.

Section 12 of National Planning Policy Framework states that “Permission
should be refused for development of poor design that fails to take the
opportunities available for improving the character and quality of an area and
the way it functions”. The proposal almost doubles the size of the existing
dwelling is in a bid to subdivide the existing dwelling into a flatted scheme.
With the development proposal effectively doubling the overall floor area of
the building, it is inevitable that the scale of the addition would be
insubordinate and would result in a completely different building and
relationship to the surrounding area. The expanse of the rear addition
measuring 7 metres at single storey and 4 metres at two storey level results
in large expanses of gable on the north-east and south-west side elevations
which would appear out of keeping with the surrounding character. With the
extensions cumulating to completely transform the existing form and layout of
the dwelling, it is considered that this form of development points towards

Page 22



17.

18.

19.

20.

2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

overdevelopment of the dwelling and of the site. The additions towards the
rear would compete with the scale of the existing dwelling and would, due to
its scale, be insubordinate to the host building and contrary to the Council’s
SPD ‘Design’ which notes that “The additional mass should respect the
existing building proportion, symmetry and balance.” Erecting a rear addition
which almost doubles the size of the existing floor area of the dwelling is not
considered to respect the character of the existing dwelling nor is it
considered to improve the way the area functions.

Policy CS10 of the Core Strategy 2012 makes provision for 750 dwellings as
infill development in the Borough’s urban area between 2010 and 2027, at a
density of 30-40dph (dwellings per hectare). The reasoned justification for the
policy states that “Infill development will be permitted provided the proposed
development is at an appropriate scale in relation to the character of the
surrounding area”. Policy CS10 goes on to note that:

“The density ranges set out are indicative and will depend on the nature of
the site (emphasis added). Density levels will be influenced by design with
the aim to achieve the most efficient use of land. Wherever possible, density
should exceed 40 dwellings per hectare and will not be justified at less than
30 dwellings per hectare, unless there are significant constraints on the site or
where higher densities cannot be integrated into the existing urban form.
Higher densities than these guidelines will be permitted in principle where
they can be justified in terms of the sustainability of the location and where
the character of an area would not be compromised.

As previously indicated, Bentham Avenue consists of semi-detached and
terraced dwellings along a linear grain of development at a density range of
26 dwellings per hectare, typical of the area. With the proposed extensions
and conversion of the existing single family dwelling into 2 flats, the density
would rise to 52dph, double that of the existing site and surrounding area.
Whilst Policy CS10 identifies that wherever possible density should exceed
40 dph, and will not be justified at less than 30 dph this is subject to the
proviso that unless higher densities cannot be integrated into the existing
urban form. It is symptomatic of development which is at odds with the
prevailing character at double the existing density. Whilst the site falls within
the Urban Area it is not located within such a sustainable location (i.e. it is not
within, nor within close proximity of, any Neighbourhood/Local/District/Town
Centre) to justify a residential density so much higher than the surrounding
area. The density of the proposal indicates that the proposal will not integrate
satisfactorily into the existing urban form.

It has to be stressed that whilst a density of 56 dph may be considered
appropriate in one part or street in the borough, this does not mean that it can
be applicable to the established character or density in Bentham Avenue.
Development is required to respect and be reflective of the area in which they
are located, for example one suburban residential street may have a density
of 70 dph and to rationalise this density range in another area characterised
by 15 dph would be unreasonable and incommensurate with the character.
As per Policy CS10 above, the density range will be dependent on the nature
of the site and to ignore this would be contrary to adopted policy.

The reasoned justification within Policy CS10 states that ‘it is important that

densities sought do not affect the quality and character of an area”. Policy
CS10 goes on to note that increased density on developments may be

Page 23



21.

22.

23.

2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

considered acceptable provided the character of the area would not be
compromised. It is clear that the scheme represents overdevelopment of the
site with additions which fail to respect the prevailing character of Bentham
Avenue and fail to respect the character of the existing dwelling considering
the overtly bulky, incongruous and insubordinate additions proposed. The
proposed density of 52 dwelling per hectare serves as an indicator that the
conversion of the dwelling would be at odds the prevailing character. This is
lucidly illustrated by the contrived, bulky and insubordinate rear addition
proposed. The development is, therefore, not seen to adopt an appropriate
scale or housing provision in relation to the character of the surrounding area.

As previously noted, Bentham Avenue is a Post War development of two
storey semi-detached and terraced, single family dwellings of a similar
character. The conversion of one of these representative dwellings into a
flatted scheme would be completely at odds with the prevailing character and
would undermine any future argument the Local Planning Authority may have
in preventing the conversion of other similar style dwellings. Each application
must be treated on its individual merits, however, approval of this proposal
could be used in support of a potential future schemes to erect similar rear
additions and convert the single family dwelling into flats. It is considered that
this is not a generalised fear of precedent, but a realistic and specific concern
considering the emulating nature of dwellings in the vicinity. Given the similar
characteristics of the application site to these neighbouring sites, permitting
such an application would make it more difficult for the Local Planning
Authority to resist a potential further planning application for similar
development which would completely erode the established character of the
area. It is noted that similar forms of development have occurred in the
Borough but it has to be noted that these development may have occurred in
areas which had previously undergone conversions and which may already
be a part of the character. Bentham Avenue and surrounding streets,
conversely, have had no subdivisions and retains a character of semi-
detached and terraced dwelling rather than dwellings subdivided into flats.

It is clear from the above paragraphs that not only is the proposed subdivision
of the dwelling and resultant plot sizes at odds with the prevailing character of
Bentham Avenue, but the proposed density is at double that of the
surrounding area. Furthermore, by combined reason of the scale of the part
single storey part two storey addition and resultant large footprint and
homogeneous bulk and mass, the proposed development would appear
incongruous, and an anomaly, within this suburban cul-de-sac, the existing
urban form of which is made up entirely of detached single houses. The
proposed development would, therefore, fail to respect and make a positive
contribution to the street scene and the character of the area in which it would
be situated contrary to the provisions on the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policies CS10, CS21 and CS24 of the Core Strategy 2012,
Policy DM11 of the Development Management Policies DPD 2016 as well as
the Council’'s Supplementary Planning Documents ‘Outlook, Amenity, Privacy
and Daylight’ 2008 and ‘Design’ 2015.

Layout and Creation of Acceptable Residential Development for Proposed
Occupiers

One of the objectives of the National Planning Policy Framework is to ensure
good standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants of land and
buildings. Policy CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 echoes this

Page 24



24.

25.

26.

27.

2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

provision with detailed guidance set out within the Council’s Supplementary
Planning Document ‘Outlook, Amenity, Privacy and Daylight’ 2008.

Policy DM11 of the Development Management Policies DPD 2016 states that
“proposals for...the sub-division of existing dwellings of an appropriate size to
two or more dwellings, including flats...will be permitted provided the following
criteria are met...a good quality of accommodation is provided by meeting
any relevant housing standards”. Policy DM11 goes on to state that in
addition to the criteria listed, the subdivision of dwellings will only be permitted
where “each proposed dwelling has access to a suitable area of private
amenity space”. Amended plans have been submitted which propose a split
rear amenity space to serve both flats. The proposed ground floor flat would
be served by the amenity space immediately to the rear of the proposed rear
additions with the amenity space to serve the first floor flat set behind this or
towards the terminus of the existing rear garden.

Section 4.6 of the Council’'s Supplementary Planning Document ‘Outlook,
Amenity, Privacy and Daylight' 2008 states that “All dwellings designed for
family accommodation...need to provide a suitable sunlit area of
predominantly soft landscaped private amenity space (emphasis added),
appropriate in size and shape for the outdoor domestic and recreational
needs of the family it is intended to support.” The amenity space to serve the
ground floor flat (which has been designed as family accommodation to
otherwise offset the loss of family accommodation through the proposed
change of use) is located immediately to the rear of the flat. It is proposed to
convert the first floor space to a separate independent dwelling which
includes both bedroom windows as well as the landing window on the rear
elevation. These windows would provide clear and unrestricted views down
onto the amenity space of the proposed ground floor family accommaodation.

Policy CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 states that new developments
“should achieve a satisfactory relationship to adjoining properties avoiding
significant harmful impact in terms of loss of privacy, daylight or sunlight, or
an overbearing effect due to bulk, proximity or outlook”. Whilst some degree
of overlooking may be expected in urban locations, considering the sub-urban
context of the application site, having your entire amenity space, which is
intended to serve as private amenity space for family accommodation,
overlooked by first floor window direct above this space is not considered an
acceptable relationship with significant harm on the amenity of the intended
ground floor flat occupiers. The proposed amenity space to serve the ground
floor flat is, therefore, not considered appropriate and would not meet the
provision of providing private amenity space for family accommodation is a
suburban location.

Further to the above, the amenity space proposed to serve the ground floor
flat amount to approximately 60 sq.m in size. Section 4.8 of the Outlook SPD
states that:

“Where appropriate, the area of private garden should approximate with gross
floorspace of the dwelling (subject to the character of the local context) but it
is advised that it should always be as large as the building footprint of the
dwelling house, except in the most dense urban locations as discussed
below.”

Page 25



28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

As noted in Paragraphs 10 and 17, the context of the area in sub-urban two
storey semi-detached dwelling with sizable amenity spaces and a density of
26 dph. This would not be considered as one of ‘the most dense urban
locations’ in the borough. The proposed floor area of the ground floor family
flat would be 98 sq.m. The SPD calls for the proposed amenity space to be at
least as large as the building footprint. At 60 sq.m the proposed amenity
space falls 38 sq.m below that of the minimum amount which again would be
at odds with the prevailing character and again would fail to comply with
adopted policy.

Overall, it has been demonstrated that the proposed layout of the amenity
spaces to the rear of the site are inadequately sized and would fail to provide
a suitable area of private amenity space for the intended family
accommodation at ground floor. Significant overlooking from the proposed
first floor flat would occur on the unduly small space to serve the ground floor
flat resulting in a poor standard of amenity for future residential occupiers.
The development is, therefore, contrary to Section 12 of the National Planning
Policy Framework, Policy CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012, Policy
DM11 of the Development Management Policies DPD 2016 and
Supplementary Planning Document 'Outlook, Amenity, Privacy and Daylight’
2008.

Impact on Neighbour Amenities

Policy CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 advises that proposals for
new development should achieve a satisfactory relationship to adjoining
properties avoiding significant harmful impact in terms of loss of privacy,
daylight or sunlight, or an overbearing effect due to bulk, proximity or outlook.
Policy CS21 is enhanced by Supplementary Planning Document ‘Outlook,
Amenity, Privacy and Daylight’ 2008.

It must be borne in mind that the potential loss of enjoyment of a view is not a
ground on which planning permission can be refused although the impact of a
development on outlook is a material planning consideration and stems on
whether the development would give rise to an undue sense of enclosure or
overbearing effect to neighbouring/nearby residential properties. There are no
established guidelines for what is acceptable or unacceptable in this regard,
with any assessment subjective as opposed to empirical, with key factors in
this assessment being the existing local context and arrangement of buildings
and uses.

The properties that could potentially be affected are the adjoining No.21
Bentham Avenue to the South and No.25 Bentham Avenue to the North.
No0.38 Blackmore Avenue towards the rear (West) of the property would be
located in excess of 18 metres from the proposed development and is,
therefore, not considered to be materially affected as a result.

No.21 Bentham Avenue is situated to the south and forms the southern
dwelling on the pair of two semi-detached properties similar to that of the
application dwelling. The proposed part single and part two storey rear
extension would extend beyond the predominant two storey rear elevation of
the application dwelling by 7 metres at single storey level and 4 metres at two
storey level with the single storey element sitting flush up against the
boundary and the two storey element set off this boundary by approximately
1.5 metres. The proposal would pass the 45° degree test as per the Council’s

Page 26



33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

Supplementary Planning Document ‘Outlook, Amenity, Privacy and Daylight’
2008 in relation to daylight/sunlight to the rear facing windows of No.21
indicating that no significant loss of light would occur.

The Council's SPD ‘Design’ 2015 states that “the location of the extension
and the position of its windows should not result in any adverse
overshadowing or overbearing impact on adjacent dwellings”, that “large two
storey extensions should not be sited close to a boundary as this can restrict
daylight to habitable rooms of the neighbouring dwelling”, that “two storey
extensions, particularly if they extend beyond 3 metres from the building,
need to be carefully sited as they can result in loss of daylight or have an
overbearing impact on the adjoining dwellings unless they are kept well away
from the separating boundary”. The projection of 7 metres at single storey
with a 4 metre projection at two storey level, at just 1.5 metres off the shared
boundary, would result in an overbearing impact and an undue sense of
enclosure to the ground and first floor habitable room windows and to some
extent the garden. Whilst the height of the single storey addition would not be
atypical at 3.5 metres to its ridge line, the accumulation of its depth at 7
metres along with the inclusion of a 4 metre deep two storey addition at
approximately 6.6 metres in height combine to result in an unneighbourly and
oppressive feature and therefore a significantly overbearing addition sited
directly up against the boundary of No.21 Bentham Avenue which includes a
modest 2.5 metres deep glazed rear addition.

Concern is also held for the impact of the substantial rear additions on the
amenities of No.25 to the North. A separation of 4 metres is proposed to be
retained between buildings which would somewhat offset the significant depth
of the additions. The 45° test has been applied to the first floor window
nearest the application site which passes in plan and elevation form given the
separation gap proposed to be retained. Whilst a degree of overbearing may
occur on this property, the fact that a 4 metre separation is retained does not
lead to a significant level of it. Conversely, this is not the situation for the
adjoining No.21 which would be unduly and significantly harmed as a result of
the proposal.

Overall, the rear extension, by cumulative reason of its depth, height, bulk
and proximity to adjoining No.21 Bentham Avenue, results in overbearing
effect upon, and loss of outlook from the property which is significantly
harmful to the residential amenity of existing and future occupiers of this
dwelling. The development is therefore contrary to the provisions of the
National Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS21 of the Woking Core
Strategy 2012 and Supplementary Planning Documents 'Outlook, Amenity,
Privacy and Daylight' 2008 and 'Design’ 2015.

Impact on Highway Safety and Parking

Bentham Avenue is a suburban Post War estate with very little on-street
parking provision given the density and presence of dropped kerbs. The
existing dwelling does not include any on-site parking.

Policy CS18 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 sets out that that minimum car
parking standards will be set for residential development (outside of Woking
Town Centre). The Council’s Supplementary Planning Document ‘Parking
Standards’ 2018 sets out minimum residential parking standards. The site, in
this instance, contains an existing three bedroom dwelling, which exerts an

Page 27



38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

existing parking demand. It is useful therefore to compare the parking
demand, in line with SPD Parking Standards 2018, between the existing and
proposed situations. The existing 3-bedroom flat as well as the 2-bedroom flat
carry a minimum provision of 1 parking space each, 2 in total. This
demonstrate that the proposal would result in no additional demand in
comparison to the existing situation which has a minimum provision of 2
parking spaces. The County Highway Authority have been consulted on this
application and raise no objections subject to conditions which in the event of
an approval could be attached.

Whilst the development may be considered acceptable with regards to the
impact on the parking and highway safety, this does not outweigh the fact that
the development would fail to adhere to national and local policies as well as
supplementary documents with a scheme which is out of character with the
area, has significant impacts on neighbour amenity and would fail to provide
all units with private amenity space.

Affordable Housing

Policy CS12 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 states that all new residential
development will be expected to contribute towards the provision of affordable
housing and that, on sites providing fewer than five new dwellings, the
Council will require a financial contribution equivalent to the cost to the
developer of providing 10% of the number of dwellings to be affordable on
site.

However, Paragraph 63 of the NPPF sets out that the provision of affordable
housing should not be sought for residential developments that are not major
developments, other than in designated rural areas (where policies may set
out a lower threshold of 5 units or fewer).

Whilst it is considered that weight should still be afforded to Policy CS12 of
the Woking Core Strategy 2012 it is considered that more significant weight
should be afforded to the policies within the NPPF. The proposal is hot major
development and therefore no affordable housing contribution is sought.

Impact on the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area

The application site falls within the 400m - 5km (Zone B) of the Thames Basin
Heath Special Protection Area (TBH SPA) buffer zone. The Thames Basin
Heath Special Protection Area (SPA) is a European designated site afforded
protection under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010
as amended (the Habitats Regulations). The Habitats Regulations designate
the Local Planning Authority as the Competent Authority for assessing the
impact of development on European sites and the LPA must ascertain that
development proposals will not have an adverse effect on the integrity of the
site, alone or in combination with other plans and projects, either directly or
indirectly, before granting planning permission. The TBH SPA is designated
for its internationally important habitat which supports breeding populations of
three rare bird species: Dartford Warbler, Woodlark and Nightjars. The
Conservation Objectives of the TBH SPA are to ensure that the integrity of
the site is maintained or restored as appropriate, and to ensure that the site
contributes to achieving the aims of the Wild Birds Directive.

Page 28



43.

44.

45,

46.

47.

48.

2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

Policy CS8 of the Woking Core Strategy (2012) requires new residential
development beyond a 400m threshold, but within 5 kilometres, of the SPA
boundary to make an appropriate contribution towards the provision of
Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) and Strategic Access
Management and Monitoring (SAMM).

The Suitable Alternative Natural Greenspace (SANG) and Landowner
Payment elements of the SPA tariff are encompassed within the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL) however the Strategic Access Management and
Monitoring (SAMM) element of the SPA tariff is required to be addressed
outside of CIL. The applicant has not submitted a Legal Agreement to secure
the relevant SAMM contribution of £716 (2-bed unit) in line with the Thames
Basin Heaths Special Protection Area Avoidance Strategy as a result of the
uplift of one 2-bedroom flat that would arise from the proposal.

In view of the above, the Local Planning Authority is unable to determine that
the development would not have a significant effect upon the SPA and is
therefore contrary to Policy CS8 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012, the
Thames Basin Heaths Avoidance Strategy, saved Policy NRM6 of the South
East Plan (2009) and the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations
2017 (SI No. 1012 — the "Habitats Regulations™).

Local Finance Considerations

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) is a mechanism adopted by Woking
Borough Council which came into force on 1st April 2015, as a primary means
of securing developer contributions towards infrastructure provisions in the
Borough. In this case, the proposed residential development will incur a cost
of £125 per sq.metre which equates to a contribution of £6,002.37 (144.7
sq.metres total GIA with 62.3 sqg.metres additional floorspace at 2020
indexation). The development, therefore would be liable to a total CIL
contribution of £6,002.37 which would be payable upon commencement
should permission be granted for the development.

Conclusion

To conclude, the proposed development has failed to demonstrate
compliance with Policy DM11 of the Development Management Policies DPD
2016 in that the subdivision of the property fails to provide appropriate private
amenity space for the proposed units. The intended amenity space to serve
the ground floor flat would fail to have access to a suitable area of private
amenity space at just 60% of the recommended amount as well as lacking
privacy due to overlooking from the proposed first floor flat. Further to this, the
introduction of a flatted development with amenity spaces which appear as an
anomaly in an area characterised by two storey semi-detached and terraced
single family dwellings with commensurate amenity spaces and plot sizes
would be significantly harmful to the established character and could lead to a
corrosion of this character given the emulating form and style of dwellings
evident in the locality.

The excessive scale, depth and bulk of the proposed rear addition would
result in a development which fails to take the opportunities available for
improving the character and quality of the area appearing to
unsympathetically extend the building to accommodate the additional flat.
This would result in an insubordinate addition almost emulating the size of the

Page 29



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

existing dwelling which would harm the character and appearance of the
existing site and the surrounding area. Furthermore, the proposal would have
a significant adverse impact on the residential amenities of No.21 Bentham
Avenue in terms of overbearing impact given its positioning along the shared
boundary and significant depth at both single and two storey level.

49. Furthermore, in the absence of a signed Legal Agreement or other
appropriate mechanism to secure contributions towards mitigation measures,
the Local Planning Authority is unable to determine that the additional
dwelling would not have a significant impact upon the Thames Basin Heaths
Special Protection Area, contrary to Policy CS8 of the Woking Core Strategy
2012, the Thames Basin Heaths Avoidance Strategy, saved Policy NRM6 of
the South East Plan (2009) and the Conservation of Habitats and Species
Regulations 2017 (SI No.1012 — the "Habitats Regulations").

50. Whilst it is acknowledged that the provision of a 1 net residential units would
be of some public benefit, the Council’s position on five year housing land
supply is set out in the Five Year Housing Land Supply — Position Statement
published in November 2018. This document shows that, as of 01.04.2017,
Woking has an overall housing land supply of 9.2 years’ worth in the next five
year period, taking into account the yearly housing requirement, a 5% buffer
and historic undersupply since 2006. Given this context, it is not considered
that the benefit of a 1 net additional residential unit in this instance would be
outweighed by the planning harm identified.

51.1t is therefore considered that the proposed conversion of the 3 bedroom
family dwelling into two flats along with the erection of rear additions would be
contrary to provisions outlined in Section 12 of the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policies CS10, CS21 and CS24 of the Woking Core Strategy
2012, Policy DM11 of the Development Management Policies DPD 2016, the
Council’'s Supplementary Planning Documents on ‘Design’ 2015 and ‘Outlook,
Amenity, Privacy and Daylight’ 2008 and the Thames Basin Heaths Special
Protection Area Avoidance Strategy 2010-2015, the Conservation of Habitats
and Species Regulations 2017 (SI No.1012 - the "Habitats Regulations") and
is therefore recommended for refusal for the reasons outlined below.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

1. Site visit photographs.
2. Response County Highway Authority (09.03.20)

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that planning permission be REFUSED for the following reasons:

1. The proposal, by reason of the plot subdivision, layout, inadequate amenity
space and bulk and scale of the proposed extensions would result in an
overdevelopment of the site as evidenced by the unduly cramped, contrived,
insubordinate and incongruous form of development and uncharacteristically
small and irregularly shaped amenity spaces. This would be in conflict with
and fail to reflect the prevailing grain, pattern and character of development of
Bentham Avenue which is made up of semi-detached and terraced single
houses. The proposal would therefore cause unacceptable harm to the
character of the surrounding area and would not amount to good
development which respects or makes a good contribution to the area

Page 30



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

contrary to provisions outlined in the National Planning Policy Framework,
Policies CS10, CS21 and CS24 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012, Policy
DM11 of the Development Management Policies DPD 2016 and
Supplementary Planning Documents ‘Outlook, Amenity, Privacy and Daylight’
2008 and 'Design’ 2015

By reason of its inappropriate amenity space in terms of size and lack of
privacy to serve the proposed ground floor family flat, the creation of two flats
in place of the existing three bedroom family dwelling is contrary to Section 12
of the National Planning Policy Framework, Policy CS21 of the Woking Core
Strategy 2012, Policy DM11 of the Development Management Policies DPD
2016 and Supplementary Planning Document 'Outlook, Amenity, Privacy and
Daylight' 2008.

The proposal would result in a significantly harmful overbearing effect, by
reason of bulk and proximity to the adjoining No.21 Bentham Avenue. The
accumulation of the additions’ depth at 7 metres along with the inclusion of a
4 metre deep two storey addition at approximately 6.6 metres in height
combine to result in an unneighbourly and oppressive feature which would
cause a significantly impact on No.21 Bentham Avenue. The proposal is
therefore contrary to provisions outlined in the National Planning Policy
Framework, Policy CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the Council’s
Supplementary Planning Documents ‘Design’ 2015 and ‘Outlook, Amenity,
Privacy and Daylight’ 2008.

In the absence of a Legal Agreement or other appropriate mechanism to
secure contributions towards mitigation measures, the Local Planning
Authority is unable to determine that the additional residential unit would not
have a significant impact upon the Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection
Area, contrary to Policy CS8 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012, the Thames
Basin Heaths Avoidance Strategy, saved Policy NRM6 of the South East Plan
(2009), the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (SI
No0.1012 - the "Habitats Regulations") and Policy DM11 of the Development
Management Policies DPD 2016.

Informatives:

1.

The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has worked
with the applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the
requirements of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019.

The plans relating to the development hereby refused are numbered / titled:
Drawing No: 2019/AM/06 A (Amended Plan) (Received 11.12.20)
Drawing No. 2019/AM/05 A (Amended Plan) (Received 28.10.20)

Drawing No. 2019/AM/02
Drawing No. 2019/AM/04 A (Amended Plan) (Received 28.10.20)

Page 31






ITEM 6a — PLAN/2019/1168

23 Bentham Avenue,
Sheerwater, Woking.

ec abed

Erection of part two storey, part single storey rear extension and
conversion of existing dwelling (three bedroom) into x2 flats (Amended
Description and Plans).

... , ds tomorrow today
Beacon\ 2{=ETelo]) N Promoting Sustainable Beacon
3 2005-2006 M C ities Through H 2008-2009
Council Sustainable Energy AUthonty thz";’nl::;'r'wlin;stcessmug AUthonty Tackling Climate Change



Slide 3

Location Plan — PLAN/2019/1168

Page 34



Slide 4

Photographs — PLAN/2019/1168

28/01/:202081815328

280112020




Slide 5

Proposed Elevations — PLAN/2019/1168

lill= | i

q EXISTING SIDE ELEVATI

.—-1

EXISTING REAR ELEVATION

og abed

N

e

P = S — >

ROPOSED REAR ELEVATION

PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATI




Slide 6

Photographs — PLAN/2019/1168




Slide 7

Photographs — PLAN/2019/1168

8¢ abed

RS Y

2810172020 1151361 *




Slide 8

Photographs — PLAN/2019/1168

6¢ abed




Slide 9

Existing and Proposed Plans —
PLAN/2019/1168

Cumr'y

O abed

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR

= ))/ — S —— = = ==
; ; Bedroom M

Bedroom

Kitchen Bedroom

Dining Room

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR | — |




Slide 10

Existing and Proposed Plans —
PLAN/2019/1168

T abed
I
1
|
L
|
|
]_L—ﬁi

SSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSSS

OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO



Slide 11

Block Plan — PLAN/2019/1168

7
L/?J TE AntEn //,/ 3/ I L ‘

‘ 7 5

2 abed
s -
[

E-1/200



Slide 12

oy abed

Adopted Policy and Supplementary
Documents— PLAN/2019/1168

Policy DM11 Development Management Policies DPD

Dwelling sub-divisions

In addition to the 'General Criteria' above, the sub-division of dwellings of
an appropriate size to two or more

dwellings will only be permitted where:

(i) the proposal would not result in an overall loss of a family home; and
(ii) each proposed dwelling has access to a suitable area of private
amenity space.

Supplementary Planning Document — Outlook, Amenity, Privacy and
Daylight — Section 4

4.6 All dwellings designed for family accommodation...need to provide a
suitable sunlit area of predominantly soft landscaped private amenity
space, appropriate in size and shape for the outdoor domestic and
recreational needs of the family it is intended to support.




Slide 13

Block Plan — PLAN/2019/1168

ROPOSED REAR ELEVATION



Slide 14

Block Plan — PLAN/2019/1168

G obed







Agenda Item 6b

Units 1 And 2 Morris
House, 34 Commercial

Way, Woking

PLAN/2020/1124

Change of use of existing Class E (Commercial, Business and Service) to Class F1
(Performance Arts Library) for Unit 1 and 2. Alterations to the front elevation and 2x
illuminated signages panel across both units (amended description).

Jubilee Sguare

Chirist & 1
Church £
kermroria : E.\-
&
(“}#
o ™
& Q\:\\_{F
A
o Eob ‘ Eank
&
- g
4
% <
oﬁ Y
o,
% 24 4m
L :
.e"ﬁ"
A s ©
= i
o
=
[=
a
£
E
£ .
& 1915
F 4 i
o B8 Albion House
¢ 5 d‘ﬁ,'
o
&
o &
&% F
) o
e
=
Py : ab
333m
&
i Eank
%
E A
&, %
B ‘R:{? e
& [ & "
5 »
o5
: A ol
P A W
- B8 .;.\':"\ \'2:\
5% 3 ) gl o
% 35:0m
ry
o

Page 47






En

oy D AN

PLAN/2020/1124

Units 1 and 2 Morris House

Library

Comments

Not Set

\

SCALE 1:1,250

0 5 10 20 30 40

I \etres

Planning
Woking Borough Council
Civic Offices

X Gloucester Square

Woking, Surrey GU21 6YL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100025452. This product is ;‘r-o’ta%
residence data which is owned by Royal Mail Group Limited and / or Royal Mail Group PLC. All Rights Reserved, Licence no. 100025452.

3N e 7 AN\ N\

“ _atll AN N

A

I
o
-
o







2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

6b  PLAN/2020/1124 WARD: Canalside

LOCATION: Units 1 and 2 Morris House, 34 Commercial Way, Woking, Surrey, GU21 6EN
PROPOSAL: Change of use of existing Class E (Commercial, Business and Service) to
Class F1 (Performance Arts Library) for Unit 1 and 2. Alterations to the front elevation and

2x illuminated signage panels across both units (amended description).

APPLICANT: Mr Mark Welling OFFICER: Emily Fitzpatrick

REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE:

The agent is a member of staff at Woking Borough Council for development of land in its
ownership of which the Council proposes to grant to a 3' party (the charity).

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

The proposal is for a change of use from a retail until (Class E) to a Performance Arts
Library (Class F1 Learning and non-residential institutions). Under the Town and Country
Planning (Use Classes) (Amendment) (England) Regulations 2020 this would constitute
permitted development for a temporary period of three years. However this application
seeks a permanent change and would therefore require planning permission.

The proposal would comprise of a public library run by NewSPAL (New Surrey Performing
Arts Library). NewSPAL is a charity organisation and oversees the collection of performing
arts materials, comprising of more than 206,000 items including orchestra sets, choir sets,
play sets, chamber music, scores, books, CDs and DVDs covering all the performing arts
(music, drama and dance). It is widely used by choirs, orchestras, theatre groups, students
and teachers. The proposal would comprise of a specialist lending and reference library for
a nationally important collection of materials relating to the performing arts.

The proposal would see the amalgamation of Unit 1 and 2 serving the ground floor. The
ground floor would accommodate a seating/study/browsing area, reception/ work area,
WCs, kitchen, book stands, stair lobby and escape lobby. Unit 1 and 2 would have a GIFA
of 592sgm on the ground floor. Part of the first floor would serve both units and would
comprise of a storage and ancillary area to accommodate the vast collection of materials.
The GIFA of the first floor would be 169sgm. Both units would occupy the ground floor area
and part of the first floor area which gives access to the rear external service area.

Betfred also has access to part of the first floor and there is no change to this area. The
second floor of the building would be retained in office use.

External alterations are proposed to the front elevation (north). Alterations to the existing
enclosed porch area to finish flush. Two illuminated signage panels are proposed to both
units.

PLANNING STATUS

Primary Shopping Area

Primary Shopping Frontage

Secondary Shopping Frontage

Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km)

Page 51



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

e Urban Areas
¢ Woking Town Centre
¢ Adjacent to Woking Town Centre Conservation Area

RECOMMENDATION

GRANT planning permission subject to conditions.

SITE DESCRIPTION

Morris House is a mid-terrace building located on the southern side of Commercial Way.
The building is predominantly 3 storeys in height although there is an additional plant room
on part of the roof of the building, making the building 4 storeys in this location. The
application site is in close proximity to Woking Town Centre Conservation Area.

The rear of the building can be accessed for servicing via the service road from Chapel
Street which serves the units fronting Commercial Way, Church Path and those fronting the
High Street. The service road slopes upwards such that the service yard area for Morris
House is at first floor level. Permission was granted in June 2017 for a change of use from
Al to A3 (Restaurant and cafes) prior to the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)
(Amendment) (England) Regulations 2020 which saw Class A replaced with Class E from
the 1 September 2020.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

o PLAN/2018/1291- Change of use of part of the first floor from Class A3 (food and
drink) to Class B1 (office) to enlarge the existing Class B1 (office) space and air
conditioning unit to rear- Permitted 04.01.2019

e PLAN/2018/0361- Formation of external seating area to front of unit- Permitted
13.06.2018

e COND/2017/0083- Approval of details pursuant to condition 9 (external lighting) of
PLAN/2017/0500 (Change of use of existing Class Al (Retail) Unit to 2 no. Class A3
(Restaurant and cafes), improvements to Morris House office entrance, replacement
windows to first & second floors, new render to building facades, new shopfronts to
each proposed unit and replacement of rear door.)- Permitted 14.08.2017

e PLAN/2017/0500- Change of use of existing Class Al (retail) Unit to 2no. Class A3
(Restaurant and cafes), improvements to Morris House office entrance, replacement
windows to first & second floors, new render to building facades, new shopfronts to
each proposed unit and replacement of rear dormer- Permitted 28.06.2017

CONSULTATIONS

e Environmental Health: No objection.

REPRESENTATIONS

None received.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework (2019):

Page 52



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

Section 2 — Achieving Sustainable Development
Section 7- Ensuring the vitality of town centres
Section 8- Promoting healthy and safe communities
Section 9- Promoting sustainable transport

Section 12- Achieving well-designed places

Woking Core Strategy (2012):

CS2- Woking Town Centre

CS18- Transport and accessibility

CS19- Social and community infrastructure

CS20- Heritage

CS21- Design

CS24- Woking’s landscape and townscape

CS25- Presumption in favour of sustainable development

Woking Development Management Policies Development Plan Document (2016):

DM7- Noise and light pollution

DM16- Servicing Development

DM17- Public realm

DM18- Advertising and signs

DM19- Shopfronts

DM20- Heritage assets and their setting

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs):

Parking Standards SPD (2018)
Woking Design (2015)

PLANNING ISSUES

1.

The main issues to be considered in the determination of this application are the
principle of the change of use, the visual impact of the proposed external alterations,
impact on residential amenities and impact on highway safety.

Principle of development

2.

The NPPF (2019) and Policy CS25 of the Woking Core Strategy (2012) promote a
presumption in favour of sustainable development. Policy CS2 of the Core Strategy
recognises the town centre as the primary centre for economic development and that
new development should deliver high quality, well designed public spaces and
buildings, which make efficient use of land, contribute to the functionality of the centre
and add to its attractiveness and competitiveness.

Policy CS2 states that ‘the town centre will also be the preferred location for other
town centre uses as defined in the Glossary including hotel and cultural and
entertainment facilities. Proposals for such uses will be permitted where it can be
demonstrated there is a need for the development and the proposals deliver the
objectives of the Core Strategy and do not undermine the delivery of the specific
proposals set out above’.

Objective 1 enables a diverse range of development such as offices, housing,
shops, leisure and cultural facilities in Woking Town Centre to enable its status as a
centre of regional significance to be maintained. Development will be of high quality
and high density to create an attractive environment for people to live, do business
and visit.

Page 53



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

Objective 2 enables attractive and sustainable development of the district and
local centres to provide convenient access to everyday shops and local services,
local community facilities, parks and open spaces.

The proposal would comply with the above objectives taken from the Core Strategy
(2012). The ground floor retail unit is currently vacant and whilst the proposal would
result in the loss of this Class E (Commercial, Business and Service) unit, it is noted
that there are a large number of Class E (shop, food and drink) units within the town
centre as a whole (particularly the shopping centres). Given the current circumstances
at the time of writing; the Covid-19 pandemic causing a series of long-term closures of
non-essential retail and a recession demand for Class E (shops, food and drink) units
has drastically fallen. The proposal would aid in the future recovery of the high street
post Covid-19. The proposal would re-vitalise a vacant unit by virtue of the proposed
intended use, a cultural facility in the town centre. Town centres need a variety of uses
to support their overall function as a shopping destination and to improve their
attractiveness and competitiveness. The change of this unit from Class E to Class F, a
performing arts library is considered to support the primary shopping function and
support the vitality and viability of this part of the town centre. Furthermore, Policy
CS19 supports the provision of new community facilities in locations well served by
public transport, pedestrian and cycle infrastructure which the proposal will achieve.
The proposal is therefore considered to be acceptable in principle and would comply
with Policies CS2 and CS19 of the Core Strategy and the policies in the NPPF.

Visual impact of the area

7.

10.

One of the core principles of planning as identified in the NPPF is securing high
quality design. Policy CS21 of the Core Strategy states that ‘proposals for new
development should...respect and make a positive contribution to the street scene
and character of the area in which they are situated, paying due regard to the scale,
height, proportions, building lines, layout, materials and other characteristics of
adjoining buildings and land”.

Policy DM17 of the Development Plan Document (DPD) states that “development
should create or contribute to a safe, attractive, high quality, inclusive and legible
public realm that contributes positively to local character and identify and encourages
appropriate levels of activity and social interaction”. Furthermore “proposals for new
development which impact upon the public realm should pay regard to the principles
set out in the Woking Design SPD, and (i) ensure schemes, provide for or contribute
towards an appropriate range of public realm features, including spill-out spaces for
trade, events, relaxation and recreation”.

The application site has seen modern alterations to the exterior with dark grey
fenestration. The proposal would see alterations to the existing two glazed enclosed
porch area to finish flush. The shopfronts would remain as existing, open street-facing
windows. This would accommodate small performing arts groups to stage informal
events (musical recitals, readings) within the library space but acceptable to passers-
by in Commercial Way, contributing to the diversity of activity in the town centre.

The proposal would see the installation of two illuminated signage panels across both
units advertising the proposed library and entrance along the front elevation. The
proposed signage would be adjacent to existing illuminated fascia signage panels on
either side of both units and therefore signage in this location would not appear out of

Page 54



11.

12.

2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

character with the commercial Town Centre context, although the detailed design of
the signage applied to these panels would need to be subject to a separate
application for Advert Consent.

Given the minimal changes to the front elevation of the building and the nature of the
service area at the rear of the site, it is considered that the proposed development
would not have an adverse impact on the setting of the nearby Woking Town Centre
Conservation Area.

The proposal is therefore considered to comply with Policies CS20, CS21 and CS24
of the Core Strategy, Policies DM17, DM18, DM19 and DM20 of the DM Policies
DPD, Woking Design SPD and the NPPF.

Impact upon neighbouring amenity

13.

14.

15.

Policy CS21 of the Core Strategy advises that “proposals for new development should
achieve a satisfactory relationship to adjoining properties avoiding significant harmful
impacts”. The site is located within Woking Town Centre with existing restaurants and
late-opening drinking establishments, shops and professional services nearby. The
nearest residential occupiers are those on the other side of Commercial Way,
although these occupiers are not located immediately opposite the application site.

Environmental Health have been consulted and comments as follows; there are no
adverse comments/ concerns to raise on Environmental Health grounds. Given the
proposal would accommodate a specialist lending and reference library and small
scale events for public display, the operating hours of the proposal would not be
considerably late into the night, and any breakout noise would be less than that of
other nearby establishments, it is not, therefore, considered necessary to limit the
opening hours through the planning process.

The proposal is therefore considered to comply with Policy CS21 of the Core Strategy,
Policy DM7 of the DM Policies DPD and the policies in the NPPF.

Impact upon highway safety

16.

17.

18.

Policy CS18 of the Core Strategy states that “The Council is committed to developing
a well-integrated community connected by a sustainable transport system which
connects people to jobs, services and community facilities, and minimises impacts on
biodiversity. This will be achieved by the following steps: locating most new
development in the main urban areas, served by a range of sustainable transport
modes, such as public transport, walking and cycling to minimise the need to travel
and distance modes”.

Furthermore Policy CS19 states that “The Council will work with its partners to provide
accessible and sustainable social and community infrastructure to support growth in
the Borough. The provision of new community facilities will be encouraged in locations
well served by public transport, pedestrian and cycle infrastructure”.

The site is located within a highly sustainable location in terms of access to various
modes of transport. Whilst individual visitors to the library are likely to be mainly from
Surrey and the surrounding areas, there is scope for the catchment area to go beyond
this region. The railway station, bus stops and cycle parking facilities are all within
close proximity to the site. The proposal does not include any car parking and staff will
be able to utilise the town centre car parks for parking. Cycle stands sit in close

Page 55



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

proximity to the front elevation of the site as existing, with further cycle stands to the
rear of the application site. The proposal is unlikely to exacerbate any existing on-
street parking problems due to the availability of various modes of transport and the
existing parking controls in the locality.

19. Policy DM16 of the DM Policies DPD relates to servicing and in this regard there is an
existing service area for loading/unloading at the rear of the site. Given the elevated
nature of the service area at the rear of the site the proposed library would have a first
floor area within the building which would enable ease of access to the proposed
storage and ancillary area for library materials. The servicing area would also be able
to accommodate any bin storage requirements. The proposal therefore complies with
Policies CS18 and CS19 of the Woking Core Strategy, Policy DM16 of the DM
Policies DPD and the policies in the NPPF.

LOCAL FINANCE CONSIDERATIONS

20. The Council implemented the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) on 1st April 2015.
As the proposal relates to a change of use application for which no additional
floorspace is proposed, the proposal is not CIL chargeable development.

CONCLUSION

21. Overall the proposal is considered to be acceptable in this town centre location and
would make a positive contribution to the vitality and viability of this town centre. The
proposed use would further stimulate and diversify the high street in light of the
current Covid-19 pandemic and planning for the recovery. The proposal would
contribute to the setting of the nearby Woking Town Centre Conservation Area by
virtue of the modest alterations proposed. The proposal would have an acceptable
impact on neighbouring amenity and highway safety. The proposals are considered to
comply with Policies CS2, CS18, CS19, CS20, CS21, CS24 and CS25 of the Woking
Core Strategy (2012), Policies DM7, DM16, DM17, DM18, DM19 and DM20 of the DM
Policies DPD (2016), Supplementary Planning Documents Woking Design (2014) and
Parking Standards (2018) and also the policies in the NPPF. It is therefore
recommended that planning permission is granted subject to the recommended
conditions as set out below.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

1.  Site visit photographs received 08.01.2021
2. Consultation responses

RECOMMENDATION

PERMIT subject to the following conditions:

1. The development for which permission is hereby granted must be commenced not
later than the expiration of three years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason: To accord with the provisions of Section 91(1) of the Town and Country

Planning Act 1990 (as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004).

Page 56



1.

2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
approved plans listed below:

DWG No: 712-P001 Existing Block & Site Location Plan received 8 December 2020
DWG No: 712-P002 Existing Ground Floor Layout received 8 December 2020

DWG No: 712-P003 Proposed Ground Floor Layout received 8 December 2020

DWG No: 712-P004 Existing First Floor Layout received 8 December 2020

DWG No: 712-P005 Proposed First Floor Layout received 8 December 2020

DWG No: 712-P006 Existing Second Floor Layout received 8 December 2020

DWG No: 712-P007 Existing Roof Plan received 8 December 2020

DWG No: 712-P008 Existing and Proposed Front Elevation received 12 January 2021
DWG No: 712-P009 Existing Rear & Side Elevations received 8 January 2021

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is completed
in accordance with the approved plans.

The external finishes of the development hereby permitted shall be as set out on
Section 9 of the application form and on the approved drawings.

Reason: To protect the visual amenities of the area.

Informatives

The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has worked with the
applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the requirements of the National
Planning Policy Framework (2019).

The applicant is reminded that prior to the implementation and installation of 2x

iluminated signage panels hereby permitted Advertisement Consent must be
obtained.

Page 57






ITEM 6b — PLAN/2020/1124

Units 1 and 2 Morris House, 34
Commercial Way, Woking.

65 abed

Change of use of existing Class E (Commercial, Business and Service)

to Class F1 (Performance Arts Library) for Unit 1 and 2. Alterations to

the front elevation and 2x illuminated signage panels across both units
(amended description).

Beacon\ 2{=ETelo]) N Promoting Sustainable Beacon\
HIN 2005-2006 T C ities Through e 2008-2009
Council Sustainable En AUthonty rhz";’nl::;’r’:m;spmc’?si AUthonty Tackling Climate Change

ergy



Slide 16

PLAN/2020/1124

Location Plan —

-
4
)
-
Him

g .
a#\.q ! m
ki Gl
E i
LA
oA PRI %=
%
1....... &
3 =
g L e
ag 5 Ln__._w.a & .
N 4 B
i £
n\um /.z -
» .v.r.
- o
]
sk m N .v.af”q
o ;
L M i )
y |
=N w. +

|
i
Car Park

\"'\.
b

ark
.

istore
Car

Page 60



Slide 17

Block Plan — PLAN/2020/1124

& &
{\d}m
- &80 Bank
] Qf}
Y
)'% B
% &
h‘\ & &Q/
.ﬁ\n T Mim
: ‘tﬁ*' .
o *
W e
y
1015
U Albicn House
Q
(@)
@
(@)} =
H
2° : &
' 33:3m
A
Y Bank
%
@ AN 2 \ _
-ﬁfam Q-';sa\ h'{:’ .
b g
g w{‘% 2 gﬁ*
¥ o au:_*‘ﬁ FE
e Ly 2
& & o
. . B ol
) 5 5B & S
) e
= ] ‘gﬁ:ﬁ ey P %@)O
% N O
% * 45.0m '




Slide 18

Existing and Proposed Elevations —
PLAN/2020/1124

29 abed




Slide 19

Existing Ground Floor Plan — PLAN/2020/1124

g abed




Proposed Ground Floor Plan- PLAN/2020/1124

Slide 20

: m 3
| 1.
- G i L1
_h__.,.. OTITTo | ooy —EALLd
._ [TIrO
_Ny Duuu_U- R N L
TR
ol
g
i
X
gt
. |
1 i
[
B L
_ T} f] i
& p OITTT
I M. ! J_._ w
SR ] N ik :
2 RE=zW &
” =) i
RIS AN . B HE
t 1 1,
—id ik} i
mw F i 5, 0 i
o1 wm i1 “m
Page 64

e g i

ey i s e P



Slide 21

Existing First Floor Plan — PLAN/2020/1124

G9 abed

Eoromn Fire= Floo



Slide 22

Proposed First Floor Plan — PLAN/2020/1124

99 abed
i
|
4
i

roj | First Floor



Slide 23




Slide 24

Photos — PLAN/2020/1124




Slide 25

Photos - PLAN/2020/1124




Slide 26

Existing Second Floor Plan — PLAN/2020/1124

0/ abed
]‘L_I

Existir nd Flooi



Slide 27

Existing Roof Plan — PLAN/2020/1124

T/, abed
J[







Agenda Item 6¢

Glades House

Cemetery Pales, Brookwood,
Woking

PLAN/2020/0805

Display of 3no. non-illuminated signs at Cemetery Pales advertising presence of Brookwood Cemetery

O,
Woking Maplewer

XY caniwpaint
o880 S5 Brookwood Camatery
7 Advartising Consant
Application:

=aptember 2020;

Brookwood Cemetery -
Location Plan 2; GCW

Signage; Adverizng Consent

EATAY M N1 T

= i 7 Appleation; Saptamber
by - & 2020; Block and Sita Flan 1;
— i Pw | GOW
; R SV
[ Py | - H-\_'_i-_-:-" .\.’JI
':‘ Cematery
4:', Sign 1 Location; sign 1o B
b= sei paraled o wall
Krklo Lomekory Cemetery Pales
West Hi

5 boundary: face of sign to
58 be 300mm from inside

« face of wall and bottom
edge of sign to be
300mm above top of wall

aign 2 Locaton

Camatary

AN

Sign 3 Locaton

Heathland

Page 73






Sl PLAN/2020/0805

e WOKING

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Glades House, Cemetery Palg

=)
18

yER 7
e A
- H i!.% —
- e % ‘lij' h

e
Tl 2y
o

G
o

&
s

¥

':‘_

=

ot

v

£2

0
8

PO
%%

i
"

o
1\-}}& Nurseries

—
Dr_Rlouse
Z 3 4

oo :
‘3# /i.:i'.'\-‘ =0k

_] © Crown copyright and database rights 2021

RERES
TS
QIR SSLLIRK XK
cﬁ- '9 7l

>

& b House AR /
e A $ /0 (o .
I 4 V?'Q;?v‘@egs”:v;\.é‘*‘* ’ § ’{{ vy JSt H l ” o
O e e A et Te e i X k- —1 @
e e O e S dat oy ks % B e
X RSPREIXIPRICRICHER Y e [
LR SRR LIRSS N7 &% i 2
QR AR AIIRIORH IR AR A :
RIIKIEERK RIS %. i — ; o
X K X KK XS XD XN ' est Hilll ~ o
o) RS RSB RIRAIRELBLE RN o
BSERSe SN e e T Yodete P
B R B SIIISN

51| |— i Ao
7o Ml =M~ /Brockwood
oo = Brookwood Bridge ~§ -

[T \| -
T

Golf Club
o8/

RKREEBS 3 K &

ORI X IR X WK e 56K K X XX N7 5T Vo \
0::2:%22:’::0,%&%9@0,%%99%0«0 RN, NP
I %

e /
CRROGLRKS {
QRIFLRKS (
R OERIBAL G
5 ) S
5 a0
GRS SIENCIIKY
000 OO o TRl
GRS RIRIK REBSW | Wi AR
SRS R BRI 4 G o rd.:p
S RS HIRS z “J
SRR LR HXRXNAALAX IR R RRERK K] £l BN\ B
RIS L Vg _
IR X XK X X XK X m s &
SIS IRIRRIK LS a-N
SRR KSH LS R ;
GSHEINCLLAIRIRKS ST i .on¥
0 0 T e e 220207 =] i &
QRIERIBELRAIIIARKIKS 55 =1 Worplesdon#—" a6

RRSRERIRIRRRE
QOB IX IRILIRIKAR

%
09969’
4

] o ke,
14 L T
) ___),_.; 7 r 0_:\' Qa:ﬂ :&L"
s ‘{i JE 1‘ S

|

5
S i
Yor SCALE 1:15,000

n'f.‘.! 0 70 140 280 420 560
I I Vetres

0
AT O
‘&] Comments
-ﬂ Not Set
)‘_..»_ Y| '
AL g

Corners
A v <O Planning

o Woking Borough Council

; ek |
(B 5 e . - Civic Offices
1 o —aali I @Wﬁc\&' Gloucester Square

- » v th z
Ordnance Survey 100025452. This product is #rod n‘.ﬂ part frodPAF and multiple Woking, Surrey GU21 6YL
residence data which is owned by Royal Mail Group Limited and / or Royal Mail Group PLC. All Rights Reserved, Licence no. 100025452.

i

=5 0

TR

=y
i

-

=

h
L

w
8

ST

m

L







2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

6C PLAN/2020/0805 WARD: HE
LOCATION: Glades House Cemetery Pales Brookwood

PROPOSAL: Display of 3no. non-illuminated signs at Cemetery Pales advertising presence
of Brookwood Cemetery

APPLICANT: Mrs Avril Kirby OFFICER: Gillian Fensome

REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE:

The application is referred to Committee as the applicant company is Brookwood Cemetery
Limited, which is one of the Companies where 50% or more is owned by Woking Borough
Council and is excluded from decision under delegated powers.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

The proposal seeks Advertisement Consent to display three non-illuminated signs to
advertise the presence of Brookwood Cemetery which is a Grade 1 Listed Park and Garden
to be visible from the highway on Cemetery Pales. They are to be erected to assist in
achieving the aims of the Council approved restoration master plan for the Cemetery. All
three signs are to be to the same design and specifications.

PLANNING STATUS

. Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km)

. Tree Preservation Zone Area
. Green Belt
. Conservation Area

. Listed park/garden

RECOMMENDATION

GRANT Advertisement Consent.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The application site is a Cemetery and Grade 1 Listed Park located in a Green belt area of
Woking. Brookwood Cemetery is also a Conservation Area and is in a Tree Preservation
Order area. The site has the road Cemetery Pales running through it, which runs from
Bagshot Road towards Pirbright.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

e PLAN/2019/0693 Advertisement consent for one sign to replace existing sign
advertising presence of Cemetery which is a Grade 1 Listed Park and Garden visible
from highway. Two new signs to advertise the above. Permitted

CONSULTATIONS

Page 77



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

SCC Highways: no objection. “The Highways Authority has undertaken an assessment in
terms of the likely net additional traffic generation, access arrangements and parking
provision and are satisfied that the application would not have a material impact on the
safety and operation of the adjoining public highway. The County Highway Authority
therefore has no highway requirements.”

WBC Aboricultural Officer: no objection, following receipt of a Trees Method Statement
provided by Ward Associates received by the LPA on 23 November 2020.

WBC Conservation Officer: no objection. “The signs are modest in scale and are of a
sensitive design and colour. They are informative, rather than of advertising intent. In my
view they enhance the character of the conservation area and any heritage assets in the
vicinity. | have no adverse comments”.

REPRESENTATIONS

None received.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework (2019):

e Section 12 - Achieving well-designed places
e Section 13: Green belt area
e Section 16: Conserving and enhancing the historic environment

Woking Core Strategy (2012):

e CS9: Green Belt
e CS20: Heritage and Conservation
e CS21 - Design

Development Management Policies Development Plan Document (2016):

e DM2: Trees and Landscaping
e DM18 - Advertising and signs

Supplementary Planning Documents:

e Woking Design (2015)

Other material considerations:

Section 72 Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990

PLANNING ISSUES

1. The proposal is for Advertisement Consent and as such, the only issues for
consideration are the potential impacts on amenity and public safety in accordance with
The Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations
(2007) (as amended).

Impact on Visual Amenity:

Page 78



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

Policy DM18 ‘Advertising and Signs’ of the Development Management Policies DPD
(2016) states that “proposals for outdoor advertising will be considered having regard to
its effect on the: (i) appearance of the building or on the visual amenity in the immediate
neighbourhood where it is displayed; and (ii) safe use and operation of any form of traffic
or transport on land (such as pedestrians), on or over water, or in the air” whilst Section
12 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2019) states that “the quality and
character of places can suffer when advertisements are poorly sited and designed”.

The proposed signs are to be identical in design to each other. Each will be 2.6 metres
from the ground, 1.2 metres in height, 2.4 metres in width and 0.1 metres in depth. Sign
1 is to be located opposite an existing sign, near the junction between Cemetery Pales
and Bagshot Road and signs 2 and 3 are to be located at the western end of Cemetery
Pales, opposite each other. None of the signs are to be illuminated.

The application was accompanied by a drawing of what is to be displayed which
includes the Brookwood Cemetery name with white text against a predominately black
background with elements of colour. Taking into account also the comments of the
Conservation Officer, the advertisements are considered visually acceptable.

The proposals are considered to comply with policy DM18 of the Development
Management Policies Development Plan Document (2016).

In making this assessment, regard has been had to Section 72 of the Planning (Listed
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and, it is concluded that the adverts would
preserve the character of the Conservation Area and the listed park. The proposed
advertisements are therefore considered to have an acceptable impact on the visual
amenities of the area.

Impact on Neighbouring Amenity:

7.

There are no residential neighbours in close proximity to the proposed advertisements
which would be unduly impacted upon by the proposal and no illumination is proposed.
The proposal is therefore considered to have an acceptable impact on neighbouring
amenity.

Impact upon public safety:

8. The proposed signs are to be sited at a similar height to existing signs and they will be
the same size as existing signs.

9. The County Highways Authority was consulted and considered that there would be no
material impact on public safety or the operation of the adjoining highways from the
proposals.

CONCLUSION

10. The proposed advertisements are considered to have an acceptable impact on amenity

and public safety. The proposal therefore accords with policy CS21 of the Woking Core
Strategy (2012), policy DM18 of the Development Management Policies Development
Plan Document (2016), Supplementary Planning Document Woking Design (2015) and
the National Planning Policy Framework (2019) and is recommended for approval. In
considering this application the Council has given regard to the provisions of the
development plan, so far as material to the application and to any other material
considerations. In making the recommendation to grant planning permission it is
considered that the application is in accordance with the development plan of the area.

Page 79



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

BACKGROUND PAPERS

1. Photographs provided by the applicant
2.  Consultation responses

3. Conservation area site and press notices
RECOMMENDATION

Grant Advertisement Consent subject to the following conditions:

01.

02.

03.

04.

05.

06.

This consent shall be limited to a five year period from the date of the permission.

Reason: To accord with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
plans listed below:

Block and site plan received 17.09.2020
Block and site plan 2 received 17.09.2020
Location plan 1 received 17.09.2020
Location plan 2 received 17.09.2020
Location plan received 06.10.2020
Advertising sign design received 17.09.2020

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is completed in
accordance with the approved plans.

No advertisement is to be displayed without the permission of the owner of the site or
any other person with an interest in the site entitled to grant permission.

Reason: To comply with Schedule 2 Regulation 2(1) of the Town and Country Planning
(Control of Advertisements)(England) Regulations 2007.

No advertisement shall be sited or displayed so as to -
(a) endanger persons using any highway, railway, waterway, dock, harbour or
aerodrome (civil or military);
(b) obscure, or hinder the ready interpretation of, any traffic sign, railway signal or aid
to navigation by water or air; or
(c) hinder the operation of any device used for the purpose of security or surveillance
or for measuring the speed of any vehicle.

Reason: To comply with Schedule 2 Regulation 2(1) of the Town and Country Planning
(Control of Advertisements)(England) Regulations 2007

Any advertisement displayed, and any site used for the display of advertisements, shall
be maintained in a condition that does not impair the visual amenity of the site.

Reason: To comply with Schedule 2 Regulation 2(1) of the Town and Country Planning
(Control of Advertisements)(England) Regulations 2007.

Any structure or hoarding erected or used principally for the purpose of displaying
advertisements shall be maintained in a condition that does not endanger the public.

Page 80



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

Reason: To comply with Schedule 2 Regulation 2(1) of the Town and Country Planning
(Control of Advertisements)(England) Regulations 2007.

07. Where an advertisement is required under these Regulations to be removed, the site
shall be left in a condition that does not endanger the public or impair visual amenity.

Reason: To comply with Schedule 2 Regulation 2(1) of the Town and Country Planning
(Control of Advertisements)(England) Regulations 2007

Informatives

01. The Council confirms that in assessing this planning application it has worked with the
applicant in a positive and proactive way, in line with the requirements of the National
Planning Policy Framework (2019).

02. The permission hereby granted shall not be construed as authority to carry out any
works on the highway. The applicant is advised that prior approval must be obtained
from the Highway Authority before any works are carried out on any footway, footpath,
carriageway, or verge to form a vehicle crossover to install dropped kerbs.

03. Notwithstanding any permission granted under the Planning Acts, no signs, devices or
other apparatus may be erected within the limits of the highway without the express
approval of the Highway Authority.

Page 81






ITEM 6¢ — PLAN/2020/0805

Glades House, Cemetery Pales,
Brookwood, Woking

o
jab)
Q
@D
00)
w

Display of 3no. non-illuminated signs at Cemetery Pales advertising
presence of Brookwood Cemetery

/ 2007-2008
Beacon\ 2005-2006 Beacon\ gmmoﬁngSugmminab/e
1 &% i ommunities Through
Council [ SRS Authority [riustiaetlis

Beacor_l o0a
AUthonty Tackling Climate Change



Slide 29

‘I\qsz?l
Lml
- A
- Sign Location 2 R |
-
)
Q
o)
o)
X s

Brookwood Cemetery application for
“ advertising consent September 2020;
Location Plan

I plan 12 Sor Moxtowtive purpoass only. Detalied Péooration
ouid ba sttained from oMicial coples of the THa

T e s s ey 4 s e oo e

Sign Location 3

Location Plan — PLAN/2020/0805

Sign Location 1

.....




Slide 30

Block plan — PLAN/2020/0805

Gg abed




Slide 31

Block plan — PLAN/2020/0805

9g abed




Slide 32

Advertising sigh design — PLAN/2020/0805

{BROOKWOOD {BROOKWOOD
|CEMETERY ICEMETERY

/g abed




Slide 33

9g obed

Site photos — PLAN/2020/0805

- ot -‘ Yo _.}8::'”1,«’(.
Planning application no. 202000805; a6 B Y
Apphcation for advertising consent &t

% Broockwood Cemetery,

Photograph 1, Location of sign no.1
Taken from junchon of A322 and Cematery
Pales

Proposed location of additional sign 1o match
axisting on opposite sida of road. Intenton is
o create a gateway effact and visually link
Camatery on bath sides of road in line with
aims of the Coundl’s approved conservation



Slide 34

Site photos — PLAN/2020/0805

b Plarning Application 20200805

Appication lar advartising consant at

Brockwood Cemetary

Photograph 2. Proposed locations of signs 2

and 3, |

Taken from Camelery Pales lookng east. 3 nip Infantion i %0 create a gateway

: > 1 e 8 etact and visually link both sices of
8 Cemealery in Ine with the Council's

SERraved CONBarnvation manageenont
plan for the sike,







Agenda Iltem 6d

9 -13 Poole Road
And Sections Of Poole
Road, Goldsworth Road

And Church Street

West, Woking

COND/2020/0128

Approval of details pursuant to condition 06 (Hard and soft landscape) of
PLAN/2018/1362 dated 22.03.2019 (Erection of building containing 2658 sq.m GIA
energy centre (flexible Sui Generis/Class B1), installation of 3 No. thermal store
vessels and ancillary infrastructure structures, including above ground pipework.
Associated installation of subterranean district heating main and private wire electricity
cables beneath Poole Road, Goldsworth Road and Church Street West).







— NN S
COND/2020/0128

A\

\

9-13 Poole Road

D

QTwr Comments
oS Mast (Telecommun| Not Set
o N
?«o‘b bf.\" -

«? A
SCALE 1:1,250

0 5 10 20 30 40
Depo IR W Vetres

Planning

Woking Borough Council
Civic Offices

Gloucester Square
Woking, Surrey GU21 6YL

© Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100025452. This product is ;‘r-o’(ﬂ%reartWPAF and multiple
residence data which is owned by Royal Mail Group Limited and / or Royal Mail Group PLC. All Rights Reserved, Licence no. 100025452.

.~ /ANRNRERW R\ AT

= B\







6d

LOCATION:

PROPOSAL:

2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

COND/2020/0128 WARD: C

Nos.9 - 13 Poole Road & sections of Poole Road, Goldsworth
Road & Church Street West, Woking, Surrey, GU21 6DY

Approval of details pursuant to condition 06 (Hard and soft
landscape) of PLAN/2018/1362 dated 22.03.2019 (Erection of
building containing 2658 sq.m GIA energy centre (flexible Sui
Generis/Class B1), installation of 3 No. thermal store vessels and
ancillary infrastructure structures, including above ground
pipework. Associated installation of subterranean district
heating main and private wire electricity cables beneath Poole

Road, Goldsworth Road and Church Street West).

APPLICANT: Galliford Try OFFICER: Benjamin

Bailey

REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE

Although the applicant is the contractor for construction of the development on behalf
of a Thameswey group company, legal advice is that this condition application falls
outside the Scheme of Delegation and thus such applications are required to be
determined by the Planning Committee.

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to condition 06 (Hard
and soft landscape) of planning permission PLAN/2018/1362.

PLANNING STATUS

Urban Area

Woking Town Centre (Partial) / Adjacent to Woking Town Centre (Partial)
Employment Area (Partial) (Butts Road/Poole Road)

High Density Residential Area (Partial)

Thames Basin Heaths Special Protection Area (TBH SPA) Zone B (400m-5km)

RECOMMENDATION

Approve details submitted.

SITE DESCRIPTION

The main part of the site (i.e. other than to provide below ground infrastructure works
below vehicular carriageways etc) is located on the corner of Poole Road and Butts
Road on the edge of Woking Town Centre and within the Butts Road/Poole Road
Employment Area. This main part of the site is presently the subject of advancing
construction works to provide the energy centre (including office floorspace), x3
thermal store vessels and ancillary infrastructure structures permitted under
PLAN/2018/1362.

Page 95



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

PLANNING HISTORY

The most relevant planning history for this application is as follows:

COND/2021/0004 - Approval of details pursuant to condition 21 (Enhancement of
Biodiversity) of PLAN/2018/1362.
Pending consideration

COND/2020/0157 - Approval of details pursuant to conditions 03(b) to 03(i)
(inclusive) (Detailed design etc) of PLAN/2018/1362.
Details approved (22.12.2020)

COND/2020/0156 - Approval of details pursuant to conditions 16 (Equipment on
Building Envelope) and 17 (External Lighting) of PLAN/2018/1362.
Details approved (05.01.2021)

COND/2020/0127 - Approval of details pursuant to condition 15 (Acoustic insulation
etc) of PLAN/2018/1362.
Pending consideration

COND/2020/0123 - Approval of details pursuant to conditions 03(a) (Building
facades) and 04 (Material samples) of PLAN/2018/1362.
Details approved (09.11.2020)

AMEND/2020/0051 - Non-material amendment to PLAN/2018/1362.
Pending consideration

COND/2019/0115 - Approval of details pursuant to conditions 27 (investigation and
risk assessment) and 28 (remediation method statement) of PLAN/2018/1362.
Details approved (16.10.2019)

COND/2019/0113 - Approval of details pursuant to conditions 19 (tree protective
measures / pre-commencement meeting) and 20 (detailed arboricultural method
statement) of PLAN/2018/1362.
Details approved (16.10.2019)

COND/2019/0101 - Approval of details pursuant to condition 11 (Construction
Transport Management Plan (CTMP)) of PLAN/2018/1362.
Details approved (20.08.2019)

COND/2019/0079 - Approval of details pursuant to condition 25 (Written
environmental desktop study report) of PLAN/2018/1362.
Details approved (23.07.2019)

COND/2019/0073 - Approval of details pursuant to condition 26 (Contaminated land
site investigations) of PLAN/2018/1362.
Details approved (09.07.2019)

PLAN/2018/1362 - Erection of building containing 2658 sgq.m GIA energy centre
(flexible Sui Generis/Class B1), installation of 3 No. thermal store vessels and
ancillary infrastructure structures, including above ground pipework. Associated
installation of subterranean district heating main and private wire electricity cables
beneath Poole Road, Goldsworth Road and Church Street West.

Permitted subject to conditions (22.03.2019)

Page 96



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

CONSULTATIONS

WBC Senior Arboricultural Officer: This is considered acceptable and should be
complied with in full.

REPRESENTATIONS

As this application seeks the approval of details pursuant to a condition attached to a
planning permission there is no statutory requirement for neighbour notification.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) (2019)

Section 12 - Achieving well-designed places

Woking Core Strategy (2012)

CS21 - Design

Development Management Policies Development Plan Document (DM Policies DPD)

(2016)
DM2 - Trees and landscaping

Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD’s)

Design (2015)

PLANNING ISSUES

01.

The only issue to consider is whether the details submitted are considered
acceptable to comply with the requirements of the stated planning condition.

Condition 06 (Hard and soft landscape)

02.

03.

04.

The purpose of a hard and soft landscape condition is to ensure suitable
ground surfacing materials are utilised, and suitable soft landscape is
implemented, in order to protect the character, appearance and visual
amenities of the area. The general approach to hard and soft landscape,
including the positioning of the new ‘signature’ tree, reflects planning
permission PLAN/2018/1362.

A ground floor external works landscaping plan has been submitted which
shows the use of an attractive, contemporary block paving material (Marshalls
Drivesett Argent - Light) in order to achieve a granite look whilst representing a
hardwearing alternative to natural Granite Setts. This plan also shows the use
of a silver stone with grey flecks (Marshalls Callisto Granite), which also
provides the hard-wearing yet attractive, contemporary quality of Granite.
These finishes would be applied to pedestrian areas around the building with
the Marshalls Callisto Granite finish used to demarcate both the ‘main’ and
energy centre pedestrian entrances to the building.

The planting of a ‘signature’ tree is proposed close to the ‘main’ pedestrian
entrance to the building, being a Lime tree with a 16-18cm girth and height of

Page 97



2 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

approximately 4 metres at planting. Tree pit details have also been submitted,
which incorporate an urban aeration/irrigation system, rootball anchoring
system and root barrier, to ensure the longevity of the new tree and ensure that
a suitable rooting environment is provided without longer term damage to
surrounding finished ground surfaces. The WBC Senior Arboricultural Officer
has reviewed the proposed ‘signature’ tree species, planting size and tree pit
details and comments that they are considered acceptable.

05. The submitted details are therefore considered to comply with the requirements
of condition 06 of PLAN/2018/1362.

CONCLUSION

06. The details submitted are considered acceptable and would meet the
requirements of the respective condition. The submitted details would also
comply with Policy CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy (2012), Policy DM2 of
the DM Policies DPD (2016), SPD Design (2015) and Section 12 of the NPPF
(2019). The details submitted are therefore recommended for approval as per
in the recommendation below.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Consultation response(s) from WBC Senior Arboricultural Officer

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that details submitted are approved as follows:

Condition 06 (Hard and soft landscape)
Details approved are:

e (C1906-BMA-XX-00-DR-A-90-0501 Rev C3 (Ground Floor External Works
Landscaping), dated 29.07.20 (rec’d by LPA on 05.10.2020);

e (C1906-BMA-XX-00-DR-A-90-0503 Rev C1 (Ground Floor External Works
Paving and Details), dated 10.12.20 (rec’'d by LPA on 11.01.2021); and

e X2 Emails from Arjun Singh of HTA Design LLP (Agent) dated 04 and 11
January 2021 in respect of ‘signature’ tree species and planting size (rec’d
by LPA on 04.01.2021 and 11.01.2021).

Note to applicant: The applicant is reminded that, notwithstanding the annotation on
C1906-BMA-XX-00-DR-A-90-0501 Rev C3 (Ground Floor External Works
Landscaping), the ‘signature’ tree is to be a Lime tree with a 16-18cm girth and height
of approximately 4 metres at planting in line with the subsequent x2 emails from
Arjun Singh of HTA Design LLP (Agent) dated 04 and 11 January 2021 in respect of
‘signature’ tree species and planting size.

Note to applicant: For the avoidance of any doubt the drawings listed are approved
only in respect of condition 06. The approval of these drawings pursuant to condition
06 does not confirm the acceptance of any other changes to the approved
development which these drawings may show and which are subject to pending non-
material amendment application AMEND/2020/0051.

Page 98



ITEM 6d — COND/2020/0128

N0s.9 - 13 Poole Road & sections of
Poole Road, Goldsworth Road & Church
Street West, Woking, GU21 6DY

T
jab)
«Q
@D
(o)
©

Approval of details pursuant to condition 06 (Hard and soft landscape) of
PLAN/2018/1362 dated 22.03.2019 (Erection of building containing 2658 sgq.m
GIA energy centre (flexible Sui Generis/Class B1), installation of 3 No. thermal

store vessels and ancillary infrastructure structures, including above ground
pipework. Associated installation of subterranean district heating main and
private wire electricity cables beneath Poole Road, Goldsworth Road and Church

! 2007-2008
Beacon [2T-¥: 10 W Promoting Sustainable
HBN 2005-2006 AN s Through
Council Sustainabiobrorgy  IaVAMSILINA 172 Paning Procecs

Beacor_l \ o0a
AUthonty Tackling Climate Change




Slide 36

00T abed

Ground Floor External Works Landscaping —

COND/2020/0128
P e, e @

UL DUVESETT ATGENT LT
240 1TKECMML, 180X 150XSOMI & 505 1

By LAED Bl RN £ L BRASE 16 AcwEvE
GREENGUIDE ‘& FATING

| -
T (L . | T -
e e T
WAL T O SRR
O 1 M PRI B
BAXS I ACHEYE SRISHILICE A W TAG =

o

PERIMETER DRAN TO
CIVIL ENGINEERS SPEC

&‘-1 '\lk O l{l.i-.

i e oy
T T
ms Ll iovevey SINNEEREN | I
B | - |
F
| i B |
| e
| =
S 14 D S "  — e
e Mo | wo | e |l D || i o I
P T s i | ...el..-.lmu.a-. - | | |
_____.--'-""-.-l ] 1 1
| ||

B e o e




Slide 37

TOT obed

Tree Pit Details — COND/2020/0128

-..'ﬁE ]
il

¥ %::g}

T S

ENENEENEENYEN

o

: e ""g =t
g e Lrban acrationImigation System: FootFain
-F."'f' by Groon Blue Urban or ogqual and approwed,
¥ Bs0mm padoratad plastic piping with
: aluminium powdar coatod inlat and vortcd
E : 3 capon retainer chain, irstalied in accordanca
[T with manufactrers writen rstnections
Graval Mulch bryer: 50/ 100mem depth and
3omen below top of plantar
Topscil: Mirimum &00mm dapth
Marshalks - Drivosctt Amgent (LT] 24001500 50mem,
- VLT Ty 1500 1S0uS0mm & S0ul Sis0mm
] |
|y
. A, AuExcel rigid aluminium nchnrndraﬂbr
..-/ \ \/ ..-"'f A ) | Kinkey or aqual ard approsad
\ S/ -l Figh, il firesh (=drarl, mnd'mu:,u.lrﬁmd
\/\% \é/ A :f_..._ ;\4 : o concrolo basg
LEL R,
SN g e
o e by [k roctball ancharing system
e \\"'\ \\‘< w&mﬂmuhﬁam?ﬂ E
/ / \( >‘r"d / approved, instaled in accordance with
\’4 A manufacihurars wiitten nsiruciions.
W AN
AN < Roct barrier ReAoat 600 by Geaan Blua

e Lkban or equal and appeovad, installed

along all sides:
N g

200mm chaan poa grval

oy s
\ \ i Erask up base of trea pit 1o depth of
" 150mm
RS2

s “‘\ Tree Pit Section Detail

'\__J,."smnm

Tamam Gooloxila mombrans:

]7.%&091 rigid aluminium edga

resiraint by Kinkoy or egual and
approved, 150mm high, mil Snish
{sibver), mechanicaly Sued o
conoroio basc o Kinkoy Sysfioms.
dotails

Edge of basa chamiored 1o allow
froo mowarmont of wlar

"Proposed conorolo baso o bo ook od and approved by sruciiral anginear

Tree Pit Section Detail







Agenda Iltem 6e

Sheerwater Estate
Albert Drive, Sheerwater
Woking

COND/2020/0149

Partial approval of details pursuant to Condition 15 (piling) for phase Red only of planning
permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater Regeneration.

XYoo 2

EMERALD

'YAN (b) YELLOW

PURPLE

Page 103






Fycling /<
COND/2020/0149

&h

&=5

WOKING

BOROUGH COUNCIL

o
L]

\ Sheerwater Estate, Albert Dri

The Bishop~
= I;ra\ﬁd)
Brown-School..

e

20 7,,;"“ e
~ /’Q"’"@’Q‘t’"
DI

P 9. ® 0.0, LI
s "’0¢°A’A§ =x
6 z:’:"‘ Recreation

LY R
P
o“»‘e?:’“"‘)

AN SNII AN SO
SRS
% ’/‘:,\‘:‘\ 9 A

DLy N2

‘
Sh eﬂwat-e'r
Sl 4" kvt

W
¥

3
RS \\\if.t' ¢

==y J
o# |
.| Comments s
V¥ I
; i s
/i 7 Kingswey o2\ = Not Set a
w: Business-Park<Orchard e
Wit ) SN g 5
d e g‘&Busmess Pa A ;i 7 K %/(
LA #&f’a} ,5' = 4 O
1 ¥ (,”” J’ :\ an ‘<
o2 7 oM N
4 e A Y
o 2P R ;;’” /
P 4 .
z 2 v
L##° F West Byfleet SCALE 1:6,000 U
%0 GolfClub N
K] o I:LJ‘{ 0 25 50 100 150 200
i W g2 = 7/ e —— \Vctres
\ 3 | 7 :! 5 : Oﬂ
| . » i I )
7 ) Allotfgdns W {% Planning y
ALK : it ¢ B [ Woking Borough Council
’ N ; P £ ?é\\/ Civic Offices T
= %2 4o 4 — Gloucester Square 5
s \"-. © Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100025452. This product is p'r-ol(ﬂ%rea and multiple 4 Woking, Surrey GU21 6YL
3| residence data which is owned by Royal Mail Group Limited and / or Royal Mail Group PLC. All Rights Reserved, Licence no. 100025452. d %

O
G A By o W/ 7 RS TR Aol S







02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

6e COND/2020/0149 WARD: C

LOCATION: Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking

PROPOSAL: Partial approval of details pursuant to Condition 15 (piling) for Phase
Red only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater
Regeneration.

APPLICANT: Gilbert Ash OFFICER: Joanne Hollingdale

REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE

Although the applicant is the contractor for phase Red of the Sheerwater Regeneration,
legal advice is that this conditions application falls outside the Scheme of Delegation and
thus such applications are required to be determined by the Planning Committee.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Condition 15 of planning
permission PLAN/2018/0337 relating to piling.

PLANNING STATUS

Urban Area

Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km)
Priority Place

Flood Zone 1 and 2 (some areas)

Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area & SSSI
Urban Open Space

Local Centre

RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE details submitted.

SITE DESCRIPTION

This conditions application relates to the second phase of the development for the
Sheerwater Regeneration. The second phase, known as phase Red, comprises the
specialist accommodation, the energy centre, ground floor non-residential uses, apartments,
mews dwellings and maisonettes and is due commence shortly. This phase is located
diagonally opposite Asda and lies between Albert Drive, Dartmouth Avenue and includes
part of Dartmouth Green.

PLANNING HISTORY

The most relevant planning history for this application is as follows:

PLAN/2018/0337 - Hybrid planning application (part outline, part full planning application) for the
demolition of 573 residential units and existing non-residential buildings and redevelopment of the
site to be implemented in phases to provide a mixed-use development comprising of 869 residents
units (Class C3), 134 specialist residential units (Class C3/C2), 904 sgm community centre (Class
D1), 929 sgm nursery/children's centre (Class D1), 312 sgm health centre (Class D1), 290 sgm
additional classrooms (Class D1), 1,728 sqm of retail (flexible use within Class Al and/or A2 and/or

Page 107



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

A3 and/or A4 and/or A5), 117sgm management office (flexible use within Class A1l and/or A2 and/or
A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or Bla and/or SG), and 132 sgm dentist (flexible use within Class Al
and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or class D1), a new energy centre, formation of a new
car park for Broadmere Primary school, formation of an extended car park for Bishop David Brown
School and the Leisure Centre, including a bus/coach drop off area, formation of a new community
car park to serve community hub, hard and soft landscaping and open space with a kiosk, a multi-use
games area (MUGA) and a skate park, reconfigured and new vehicular and pedestrian access and
works to the public highway and associated works; including full planning application for the detailed
phases comprising of: demolition of 412 residential units and 7,609 sgm existing non-residential
buildings, and construction of 695 residential units (7 no. studios, 68 no. 1-bedroom specialist
accommodation, 160 no. 1-bed units, 227 no. 2-bed units, 160 no. 3-bed units, 71 no.4-bed units,
and 2 no. 5-bed units,), 904 sgm Community Centre (Class D1), 1,728 sqm of retail (flexible use
within Class Al and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5), 117sgm management office (flexible use
within Class Al and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or Bla and/or SG) and 132 sgm
dentist (flexible use within Class Al and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/ or class D1), 929
sgm of nursery/children’s centre (Class D1), 312 sgm health centre (Class D1), an energy centre,
formation of an extended car park for Bishop David Brown School and the Leisure Centre, including a
bus/coach drop of area, formation of a new community car park to serve community hub, hard and
soft landscaping and open space with a kiosk, a multi-use games area (MUGA) and a skate park
reconfigured and new vehicular and pedestrian access and works to the public highway and
associated works. Permitted 18.04.2019 subject to a S106 Legal Agreement and Executive
Obligations.

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

This conditions application seeks the approval of details pursuant to Condition 15 (piling) of
planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for phase Red only.

Submitted with the application is a Piling information report, providing details of the
proposed piling proposed and a plan showing the position of the proposed piling.

CONSULTATIONS

WBC Environmental Health: The information provided confirms that Continuous Flight
Auger (CFA) piling will be used and carried out by a reputable specialist contractor. It refers
to the Construction and Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) with regard to pre-
commencement survey, vibration monitoring and communication strategy with residents. If
the works are to carried out on this basis and in accordance with Best Practicable means
(BPM) and BS5228 there is no objection to the discharge of Condition 15. Following the
receipt of revising piling information and ‘Addendum: Piling Information in relation to
Vibration’ there are no further concerns to raise if the recommended criteria for No. 1 St
Michaels Road and monitoring recommendations are fully adopted and implemented as part
of the piling operations.

REPRESENTATIONS

As this application seeks approval of details pursuant to a condition on a planning
permission, there is no statutory requirement for neighbour notification.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

Woking Core Strategy 2012
CS21 — Design

PLANNING ISSUES

Page 108



1.

02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

The only issue to consider is whether the details submitted are considered acceptable to
comply with the requirements of Condition 15.

The submitted plan shows that the 10no. Mews dwellings closest to the dwellings
outside of the site will have traditional raft foundations and the use of this type of
foundations does not require LPA approval. The other three buildings in the phase, the
retail with Maisonettes over, the retail with apartments over and the podium with the
specialist accommodation and energy centre will all use Continuous Flight Auger (CFA)
Piles for the foundations. The submitted information states that this form of piling has
been selected as it will be quiet with minimal vibration levels and will mitigate any impact
on the retained houses. The information further states that a site specific detailed pile
design has been developed which takes full account of the geotechnical characteristics
of the site, the operations will be carried out by a reputable certified specialist contractor
and the works will be completed using modern equipment suitable for progressing the
installation of the piles efficiently with vibration levels minimised. The submitted
information also states that the nearest pile will be approximately 8 metres from the
nearest retained house and the risk of any structural damage to the retained properties
as a result of the CFA piling operations is considered to be negligible.

The Council's Environmental Health Officer has reviewed the proposed details and
raises no concerns with the details submitted.

CONCLUSION

4,

In light of the above information and the comments from the Council’s Environmental
Health Officer, the details submitted are considered acceptable and would meet the
requirements of Condition 15. The submitted details would also comply with Policy CS21
of the Woking Core Strategy 2012. The details submitted are therefore recommended
for approval as noted in the recommendation below.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

File - COND/2020/0149

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that details submitted are APPROVED as follows:

Details approved are:

- Piling Planning Information by Gilbert Ash dated 14.12.2020, received on 17.12.2020;

- General Arrangement of Pile Foundations (Block 1, 2 & 3) plan (SHE-MLM-3B-00-PL-
S-28-0099 Rev P01) received on 30.10.2020; and

- Red Phase Piling Mark-up plan (Review of Continuous Flight Auger Piles Piling
operations) received on 17.12.2020.

Notes to applicant: The applicant is advised that the development is required to be
implemented in accordance with the approved details.

The applicant is advised that the approved details relate to phase Red only and details
pursuant to this condition require LPA approval for all other phases of the development in
accordance with the requirements of the condition.

Page 109






TTT obed

Beacon\ 2{=ETelo]) N Promoting Sustainable Beacon
: 2005-2006 ) Communities Through Hh 2008-2009
Council Sustainable Energy AUthonty the Plal:;ning Pmcesi AUthonty Tackling Climate Change

ITEM 6e — COND/2020/0149

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive,
Sheerwater, Woking.

Partial approval of details pursuant to Condition 15 (piling) for phase
Red only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater
Regeneration.

ds tomorrow today




Slide 39

Approved General Arrangement Plan —

&
8

é

L-—‘w—-l-’-—l/ﬁ—-‘:'"‘
: /‘f" =& SN

S

COND/2020/0149

:46. -Aﬂ ﬂ'!

e .1 2 - : [ |' .. l'.']‘

i r‘R,AI : l: -

——— _

L
>3

| =
=i

\ ! _‘A s @,E
| =
N =B

T 2=




Slide 40

Piling Plan — COND/2020/0149

These properties will be occupied during Piling operations. Properties are approximately 15m away from any Piing operations
‘_‘ = | I T M — — I T A | | =
AN L I ‘ | |
u_ &\ . | | momil — e
YN N | || | | I I I N | | PRI |
W (] — N N o N i i = ‘N\ | @ .f//_
- T BT LI
= , ; i |
_ A | 7 .
" © %o o M ........ Ay i i
Zone of CFA Piled | ) ] |
Foundations T o B B B A B R r.—.—.—.—.ﬁl - 1|
o A R SR S| IR U [ \_
o) © ™
«Q :
D = [
- P~
Zone of Traditional raft 7 4N ¥ [ P
— foundations to 1 Mews LR | ‘Ejﬁ:" = =
BLOCK 4 . —
: M ] HoJu_ses A These properties will be // |
- —— — T N occupied during Piling R | ([T
| | operations. Properties are — —
| \ approximately 8maway | L r
e | I BLOCK 2 from any Piing operations ‘ '
The piling strategy will be to utilise Continuous flight - : }
Auger Piles for the foundations to the Car Park & o : |
Apartment blocks. This form of piling has been selected | ! S - | | ﬁ' B E— B
as it will be quiet with minimal vibration levels and will \ | | | /'
mitigate any impact on the retained houses on St . X ] _ -
Michaels Road and the flats /shops on Dartmouth : | STMICHAELS ROAD
Avenue . The nearest pile will be approximately 8m T N —— CANALSIDE- RED PHASE
away from the retained houses and the risk of any —
structural damage to the retained properties as a result l | HREVIEW OF CFA PILING OPERATIONS
of the CFA piling operations is considered to be PRIOR TO DEVELOPMENT SAVE FOR
negligivle. ‘ ‘ DEMOLITION-CONDITION NO.15
T | | Lo

BEDr EOrLA T | P







Agenda Item 6f

Sheerwater Estate
Albert Drive, Sheerwater
Woking

COND/2020/0150

Partial Approval of details pursuant to Condition 19 (Air Quality) for phase Red only of
planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater Regeneration.

o NG

EMERALD

'YAN (b) YELLOW

PURPLE

Page 115






"Recycling T /(
Si
\ COND/2020/0150

&h

&=5

WOKING

BOROUGH COUNCIL

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drivie

A
\ yN A
Y £y i, o av,

N\ 4

7 AN 5
A L8
) VR
‘.w TN |
2, _ : a‘. C}’ %,\ ‘ \
ooV | lfo\p L S
Y i e The Bishop™ -
; LY A

Ao

e B Da\?id X e ‘*. \' ‘
— B v \\ ‘ .
D‘ﬂ“/// : Brown.School.. » s\\/&
X, o E b g

951

o 35
RS
B} %6%7.%5%2 02002005
20575
1 RIS BRRKK

X

: )‘:‘;\ow
QRE R X P,
”:‘0?,' C IS

% 797%5,

IR e
3.9.9. 0.9 2 Q. TS 2 X%
QA NN

@ .

R N LSRR
R R RS
NG Q) O

72 55 ' 7

L Kingswey

w AJsiness,P'ark
iy Sy Al

_e
BB R X
“f//;. {ﬁ\ i Comments L o
" 7 i Kingswe A Not Set o

wey,
< “Z\Bﬁiinés‘sﬁégl& Orchard

&,
LU
104
iy,

Business Park

v
ol ' P
N S
By & Pregns i
AN 2 P g Py
M\ vl i o WO
P 4 M N
=4 o "
b #
P ] £ )
7~

g.z
P
X
Ay
Y
S
S
by
A
By
“Eﬂ:‘ \
ath
5

A RTTE X k

A 0 West Byfleet  ~ SCALE 1:6,000

7 L 4 ,, A7 GolfClub
S T, ¥ - S0 o~ 0 25 50 100 150 200
oking Jiced T2 7 4 AR . QGHD_GW%H I N Vetres
sl e ! ; ESS 0? ’@T—T Planning
s " ' AR 4 =/ g
I 4 ’ . o
& / M Woking Borough Council
i~ = A _ ] Civic Offices
s A s AT, AN Gloucester Square
=] © Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100025452. This product is frod QL) Qardod PAF ang multiple nt Woking, Surrey GU21 6YL

= residence data which is owned by Royal Mail Group Limited and / or Royal Mail Group PLC. All Rights Reserved, Licence no. 100025452. é

O AN AN S NN AT

5







02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

6f COND/2020/0150 WARD: C

LOCATION: Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking

PROPOSAL: Partial Approval of details pursuant to Condition 19 (Air Quality) for
phase Red only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the
Sheerwater Regeneration.

APPLICANT: Gilbert Ash OFFICER: Joanne Hollingdale

REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE

Although the applicant is the contractor for phase Red of the Sheerwater Regeneration,
legal advice is that this conditions application falls outside the Scheme of Delegation and
thus such applications are required to be determined by the Planning Committee.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Condition 19 of planning
permission PLAN/2018/0337 relating to air quality.

PLANNING STATUS

Urban Area

Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km)
Priority Place

Flood Zone 1 and 2 (some areas)

Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area & SSSI
Urban Open Space

Local Centre

RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE details submitted.

SITE DESCRIPTION

This conditions application relates to the second phase of the development for the
Sheerwater Regeneration. The second phase, known as phase Red, comprises the
specialist accommodation, the energy centre, ground floor non-residential uses, apartments,
mews dwellings and maisonettes and is due commence shortly. This phase is located
diagonally opposite Asda and lies between Albert Drive, Dartmouth Avenue and includes
part of Dartmouth Green.

PLANNING HISTORY

The most relevant planning history for this application is as follows:

PLAN/2018/0337 - Hybrid planning application (part outline, part full planning application) for the
demolition of 573 residential units and existing non-residential buildings and redevelopment of the
site to be implemented in phases to provide a mixed-use development comprising of 869 residents
units (Class C3), 134 specialist residential units (Class C3/C2), 904 sgm community centre (Class
D1), 929 sgm nursery/children's centre (Class D1), 312 sgm health centre (Class D1), 290 sgm
additional classrooms (Class D1), 1,728 sgm of retail (flexible use within Class Al and/or A2 and/or

Page 119



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

A3 and/or A4 and/or A5), 117sgm management office (flexible use within Class A1 and/or A2 and/or
A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or Bla and/or SG), and 132 sgm dentist (flexible use within Class Al
and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or class D1), a new energy centre, formation of a new
car park for Broadmere Primary school, formation of an extended car park for Bishop David Brown
School and the Leisure Centre, including a bus/coach drop off area, formation of a new community
car park to serve community hub, hard and soft landscaping and open space with a kiosk, a multi-use
games area (MUGA) and a skate park, reconfigured and new vehicular and pedestrian access and
works to the public highway and associated works; including full planning application for the detailed
phases comprising of: demolition of 412 residential units and 7,609 sgm existing non-residential
buildings, and construction of 695 residential units (7 no. studios, 68 no. 1-bedroom specialist
accommodation, 160 no. 1-bed units, 227 no. 2-bed units, 160 no. 3-bed units, 71 no.4-bed units,
and 2 no. 5-bed units,), 904 sgm Community Centre (Class D1), 1,728 sqm of retail (flexible use
within Class Al and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5), 117sgm management office (flexible use
within Class Al and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or Bla and/or SG) and 132 sgm
dentist (flexible use within Class Al and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/ or class D1), 929
sgm of nursery/children’s centre (Class D1), 312 sgm health centre (Class D1), an energy centre,
formation of an extended car park for Bishop David Brown School and the Leisure Centre, including a
bus/coach drop of area, formation of a new community car park to serve community hub, hard and
soft landscaping and open space with a kiosk, a multi-use games area (MUGA) and a skate park
reconfigured and new vehicular and pedestrian access and works to the public highway and
associated works. Permitted 18.04.2019 subject to a S106 Legal Agreement and Executive
Obligations.

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

This conditions application seeks the approval of details pursuant to Condition 19 (Air
Quality) of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for phase Red only.

Submitted with the application is an Air Quality Monitoring Plan and a Baseline Diffusion
Tube Monitoring Survey Report. A brief document setting out the LPA queries and applicant
responses following the originally submitted Air Quality Management Plan has also been
provided.

CONSULTATIONS

WBC Environmental Health: In respect of the originally submitted Air Quality Monitoring
Plan no concerns were raised. | have no adverse comments to make in respect of the
revised Air Quality Monitoring Plan and Baseline Diffusion Tube Monitoring Survey.

REPRESENTATIONS

As this application seeks approval of details pursuant to a condition on a planning
permission, there is no statutory requirement for neighbour notification.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

Woking Core Strategy 2012
n/a

Development Management Policies DPD 2016
DM5 — Environmental Pollution
DM6 — Air and Water Quality

PLANNING ISSUES

1. The only issue to consider is whether the details submitted are considered acceptable to
comply with the requirements of Condition 19.

Page 120



2.

02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

The submitted Air Quality Management Plan, sets out the Baseline Air Quality situation,
details the Air Quality Standards including national air quality standards and also sets
out the monitoring methodology for the development (including locations for monitoring),
results of monitoring and reporting. Air Quality monitoring will be undertaken using
Passive Diffusion Tubes (Palmes-type) which it is stated are widely used for indicative
measurements of Nitrogen Dioxide. Air Quality monitoring will be undertaken at eight
locations around the development and over the construction period, five of these
locations will remain, to provide constant locations with three locations being moved
depending on demolition and construction activity. The monitoring locations are spread
around the development with two located outside of the Regeneration area, one in
Woodham Lane (adjacent to a WBC monitoring location) and one in Laurel Crescent.
Monitoring will occur throughout the construction period and for 3 months following the
end of the construction period. The changeover of the tubes will be in accordance with
the recommended exposure dates for diffusion tubes as published by DEFRA and
analysis of the tubes will be undertaken by an accredited laboratory.

Three quarterly reports will be provided a year with one annual report (also covering the
fourth quarter). The reports will present the monitoring locations, methods, results, any
deviations and will make a comparison with air quality criteria. For the annual report,
Nitrogen Dioxide annual mean concentrations will be compared with the National Air
Quality Objectives (NAQO). The annual report will also include a comparison between
the Nitrogen Dioxide concentrations monitored on site and those off site locations. This
comparison would identify if any mitigation measures are required. The report also
states that if any changes to the monitoring or reporting are required they will be first
approved by the LPA.

Baseline monitoring was undertaken for 7 months (pursuant to the details approved for
phase Purple prior to the commencement of that phase of the development), in six
locations and the Baseline Diffusion Tube Monitoring Survey Report has also been
submitted with this application. The report reiterates sections on Air Quality Standards
and local Baseline Air Quality and then presents the results from the diffusion tube
survey including the raw results, annualisation of results and bias adjustment, in
accordance with the Local Air Quality Management Technical Guidance 2016
(LAQM.TG (16)) published by DEFRA. The 2019 (covering June 2019-Jan 2020)
annualised and bias adjusted concentrations across the site ranged from 15.6 to 28.0
pg/ms, all of which were well below the NAQO of 40pg/m3. No mitigation measures are
therefore required.

CONCLUSION

5.

In light of the above information and the comments from the Council’s Environmental
Health Officer, the details submitted are considered acceptable and would meet the
requirements of Condition 19. The submitted details would also comply with Policies
DM5 and DM6 of the DM Policies DPD 2016. The details submitted are therefore
recommended for approval as noted in the recommendation below.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

File - COND/2020/0150

RECOMMENDATION

Page 121



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

It is recommended that details submitted are APPROVED as follows:

Details approved are:
- Revised Air Quality Monitoring Plan by MLM (776929-MLM-ZZ-XX-RP-J-0002
Revision C03) received on 27.11.2020;
- Baseline Diffusion Tube Monitoring Survey Report (775931-MLM-ZZ-XX-RP-J-0003
Revision C01) received on 27.11.2020; and
- Queries and responses document received on 27.11.2020.

Note to applicant: The applicant is advised that the approved details relate to phase Red

only and details pursuant to this condition require LPA approval for all other phases of the
development in accordance with the requirements of the condition.

Page 122



o
Q
«Q
@
=
N
w

Beacon\

Council

2005-2006
v NI Authority [

ITEM 6f — COND/2020/0150

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive,
Sheerwater, Woking.

Partial Approval of details pursuant to Condition 19 (Air Quality) for
phase Red only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the

Beacon

Sheerwater Regeneration.

-2008
mmogs stainable
mm inities Through

nning Process

ds tomorrow today







Agenda Item 69

Sheerwater Estate
Albert Drive, Sheerwater
Woking

COND/2020/0171

Partial approval of details pursuant to Condition 25 (a), (b), (¢) and (d) (contamination) for
phase Red only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater Regeneration.

X~

EMERALD

‘YAN (b) YELLOW

........

PURPLE

Page 125






— 3 =)
ez Recycling

Elifg) i\
e COND/2020/0171
A
e &
13
| —| r:}
| Sheerwater Estate, Albert DriVie

.‘\‘ 5

The Bishop

Da\fid> -
Brown:School. )

. -
T

AL =

o=

TR |-
odeiosesetetete%

A X.50

SN 429
3 N Ay
SSBINAERE
DEFE X X OIAPER X XK 8
QRIS SAS
SRS IRENS
DKL
e e 820 %
SRRSO SERRNS
ORK R RGN 0%
R ORI 565
R SIRRLIRIOLLR
B RO REIEELK

K&
%
VKX
HIILS

el

/)
u!) é
&,
/
51 f’{ AR Comments =
23 R 4 o
/ t{,ﬁj Kihgswiey | Not Set ark
; ‘&){‘ BUsinessParkiOrchard Q AP
o~ - S 3 T ) s b
(L ORE =4 Business Park > ) v 7 g/
N o S e !
\ P> . s L f\ 4
\ / 7oA 4% @
N aV i a0t N
557 < /"
”/{T 5 Pl 1 A &
P X ; > e 5 773 =" A
. . v 5;} 5T s \.\r/ ;;
V¥ Pl = I
,;5;,,” + West Byfleet -~ SCALE 1:6,000
Yy ~
P & Golf Club 0 25 50 100 150 200
5# [ @E B . Vetres
e " 1
BUsin ] o ESS” S aEHy . o
/ .;.‘. & I Planning %
ﬁs ’, g j Woking Borough Council f
/ By - Civic Offices
SIS 5 S WA AN ) S W = \o| Cloucester Square
“] © Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100025452. This product is firod ﬂr-ﬁ pa -' PAF and multiple E\Point]  Woking, Surrey GU21 6YL
residence data which is owned by Royal Mail Group Limited and / or Royal Mail Group PLC. All Rights Reserved, Licence no. 100025452.
——

R NI R S ST







02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

69 COND/2020/0171 WARD: C

LOCATION: Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking

PROPOSAL: Partial approval of details pursuant to Condition 25 (a), (b), (c) and (d)
(contamination) for phase Red only of planning permission

PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater Regeneration.

APPLICANT: Gilbert Ash OFFICER: Joanne Hollingdale

REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE

Although the applicant is the contractor for phase Red of the Sheerwater Regeneration,
legal advice is that this conditions application falls outside the Scheme of Delegation and
thus such applications are required to be determined by the Planning Committee.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Condition 25 of planning
permission PLAN/2018/0337 relating to contamination.

PLANNING STATUS

Urban Area

Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km)
Priority Place

Flood Zone 1 and 2 (some areas)

Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area & SSSI
Urban Open Space

Local Centre

RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE details submitted.

SITE DESCRIPTION

This conditions application relates to the second phase of the development for the
Sheerwater Regeneration. The second phase, known as phase Red, comprises the
specialist accommodation, the energy centre, ground floor non-residential uses, apartments,
mews dwellings and maisonettes and is due commence shortly. This phase is located
diagonally opposite Asda and lies between Albert Drive, Dartmouth Avenue and includes
part of Dartmouth Green.

PLANNING HISTORY

The most relevant planning history for this application is as follows:

PLAN/2018/0337 - Hybrid planning application (part outline, part full planning application) for the
demolition of 573 residential units and existing non-residential buildings and redevelopment of the
site to be implemented in phases to provide a mixed-use development comprising of 869 residents
units (Class C3), 134 specialist residential units (Class C3/C2), 904 sgm community centre (Class
D1), 929 sgm nursery/children's centre (Class D1), 312 sgm health centre (Class D1), 290 sgm
additional classrooms (Class D1), 1,728 sgm of retail (flexible use within Class Al and/or A2 and/or

Page 129



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

A3 and/or A4 and/or A5), 117sgm management office (flexible use within Class A1l and/or A2 and/or
A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or Bla and/or SG), and 132 sgm dentist (flexible use within Class Al
and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or class D1), a new energy centre, formation of a new
car park for Broadmere Primary school, formation of an extended car park for Bishop David Brown
School and the Leisure Centre, including a bus/coach drop off area, formation of a new community
car park to serve community hub, hard and soft landscaping and open space with a kiosk, a multi-use
games area (MUGA) and a skate park, reconfigured and new vehicular and pedestrian access and
works to the public highway and associated works; including full planning application for the detailed
phases comprising of: demolition of 412 residential units and 7,609 sgm existing non-residential
buildings, and construction of 695 residential units (7 no. studios, 68 no. 1-bedroom specialist
accommodation, 160 no. 1-bed units, 227 no. 2-bed units, 160 no. 3-bed units, 71 no.4-bed units,
and 2 no. 5-bed units,), 904 sgm Community Centre (Class D1), 1,728 sqm of retail (flexible use
within Class Al and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5), 117sgm management office (flexible use
within Class Al and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or Bla and/or SG) and 132 sgm
dentist (flexible use within Class Al and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/ or class D1), 929
sgm of nursery/children’s centre (Class D1), 312 sgm health centre (Class D1), an energy centre,
formation of an extended car park for Bishop David Brown School and the Leisure Centre, including a
bus/coach drop of area, formation of a new community car park to serve community hub, hard and
soft landscaping and open space with a kiosk, a multi-use games area (MUGA) and a skate park
reconfigured and new vehicular and pedestrian access and works to the public highway and
associated works. Permitted 18.04.2019 subject to a S106 Legal Agreement and Executive
Obligations.

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

This conditions application seeks the approval of details pursuant to Condition 25 (a), (b),
(c) and (d) (contamination) of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for phase Red only
relating to contamination.

Condition 25 states:

No development shall take place within any phase of the development hereby permitted
until a scheme to deal with contamination of the site for that phase has been submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include:-

(a) a contaminated land desk study and suggested site assessment methodology;

(b) a site investigation report based upon (a);

(c) a remediation action plan based upon (a) and (b);

(d) a "discovery strategy" dealing with unforeseen contamination discovered during
construction; and

(e) a "validation strategy" identifying measures to validate the works undertaken as a result
of (c) and (d).

Unless otherwise first approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority the development
shall be carried out and completed wholly in accordance with such details and timescales as
may be agreed.

Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory strategy is put in place for addressing contaminated
land before development commences and to make the land suitable for the development
without resulting in risk to construction workers, future users of the land, occupiers of nearby
land and the environment generally in accordance with Policies CS9 and CS21 of the
Woking Core Strategy 2012 and the NPPF.

Submitted with the application is a letter from the contractor and a Discovery Strategy which
sets out a process for dealing with any unforeseen contamination which may be discovered
during construction, along with a site investigation report.

CONSULTATIONS

Page 130



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

WBC Contaminated Land Officer: Based on the information in the report (GE17417-
GIRv1LD180921 Version 1) the condition can be partially discharged for the Red phase of
the site but part (e) needs to remain as we will still require a validation/verification report.

REPRESENTATIONS

As this application seeks approval of details pursuant to a condition on a planning
permission, there is no statutory requirement for neighbour notification.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

Woking Core Strategy 2012
CS9 - Flooding and Water Management
CS21 - Design

Development Management Policies DPD 2016
DM5 — Environmental Pollution
DM8 — Land Contamination and Hazards

PLANNING ISSUES

1. The only issue to consider is whether the details submitted are considered acceptable to
comply with the requirements of Condition 25 (a), (b), (c) and (d).

2. A site investigation report has been submitted with the conditions application, along with
a discovery strategy which sets out the process which would be followed in the event
that any unexpected contamination is found at the site during construction works. The
Council's Contaminated Land Officer has reviewed the details submitted and has
advised that the details are acceptable to comply with the requirements of parts (a), (b),
(c) and (d).

CONCLUSION

3. The details submitted are considered acceptable and would meet the requirements of
Condition 25 parts (a) to (d). The submitted details would also comply with Policies CS9
and CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012 and Policies DM5 and DM8 of the DM
Policies DPD 2016. The details submitted are therefore recommended for approval as
noted in the recommendation below.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

File - COND/2020/0171

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that details submitted are APPROVED as follows:

Details approved are:

- Letter from Gilbert Ash dated 23.11.2020, enclosing Ground Investigation Report by
Geo-Environmental reference GE17417-GIRv1LD180921 Version 1 dated
September 2018 and a Discovery Strategy by Gilbert Ash, received by the LPA with
the application on 30.11.2020.

Page 131



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

The applicant is advised that part (e) of Condition 25 and Condition 103 are still
required to be complied with and details pursuant to the requirements of these
conditions will be required to be submitted for approval, via a separate application,
prior to the first occupation of any building in any phase.

Note to applicant: The applicant is advised that the approved details relate to phase Red
only and details pursuant to this condition require LPA approval for all other phases of the
development in accordance with the requirements of the condition.

Page 132



o
Q

«Q
@
=
w
w

Beacon\
Council

2005-2006 mm n ties Through
Sustainable Energy AUthonty nning Process

ITEM 6g — COND/2020/0171

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive,
Sheerwater, Woking.

Partial approval of details pursuant to Condition 25 (a), (b), (c) and (d)
(contamination) for phase Red only of planning permission
PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater Regeneration.

2007-2008
Beacon mmo ing Sustainable

ds tomorrow today






Agenda Item 6h

Sheerwater Estate
Albert Drive, Sheerwater
Woking

COND/2020/0175

Partial approval of details pursuant to Conditions 39 (stag beetle survey), 40 (bat activity
survey) and 41 (reptile survey) for Phase Red only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337
for the Sheerwater Regeneration.

2 N

EMERALD

'YAN (b) YELLOW

PURPLE

Page 135






Recycling T WK

Sit
\\ COND/2020/0175

N2

IS
=

&h

=~

&=5

WOKING

BOROUGH COUNCIL

LA

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drivie

B T T
ESRRRAARKA 4.
RIS

X > e

R AEIREELARKS
ERIACRIIII IO R

e N

KN A
- SRSIOIERA = [ [
R KRR 1
3 L IR PR IKINSEKS 5N

5 R EORNEEEELLS, A"“\“‘\\\\ 170
& SRR “’Q‘\\\\ s
f RSBV AN ST

SR SRR SEN K })‘4’\‘4

S < ORI

ST
,‘Qf’o. K>
RS

o
ARG
KM
R

V4
~~~ Comments ‘Ho

2 Not Set P

Kingswey \
‘és‘sfé:k Orchard

\
Ny
“
it
13
)
N
5

¢ ;
\Business Park y 2
RN < 2/ N
b N s =
B, Y -' P ,’\
) ¥ o O
a2 & A N
£ < 1
o % = |
A Iy Ao
> pd ,,( YO s
g Iy Z P

SCALE 1:6,000

0 25 50 100 150 200
I Vetres

AN %

Planning
Woking Borough Council g
Civic Offices

7%

Gloucester Square
Woking, Surrey GU21 6YL

P AN KRS

reaﬂ.l:oéP F and multiple

residence data which is owned by Royal Mail Group Limited and / or Royal Mail Group PLC. All Rights Reserved, Licence no. 100025452.

Bl A N T Gl T SO SIS







02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

6h COND/2020/0175 WARD: C

LOCATION: Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking

PROPOSAL: Partial approval of details pursuant to Conditions 39 (stag beetle
survey), 40 (bat activity survey) and 41 (reptile survey) for Phase Red
only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater
Regeneration.

APPLICANT: Gilbert Ash OFFICER: Joanne Hollingdale

REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE

Although the applicant is the contractor for phase Red of the Sheerwater Regeneration,
legal advice is that this conditions application falls outside the Scheme of Delegation and
thus such applications are required to be determined by the Planning Committee.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Conditions 39 (stag beetle
survey), 40 (bat activity survey) and 41 (reptile survey) of planning permission
PLAN/2018/0337 relating to ecological requirements.

PLANNING STATUS

Urban Area

Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km)
Priority Place

Flood Zone 1 and 2 (some areas)

Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area & SSSI
Urban Open Space

Local Centre

RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE details submitted.

SITE DESCRIPTION

This conditions application relates to the second phase of the development for the
Sheerwater Regeneration. The second phase, known as phase Red, comprises the
specialist accommodation, the energy centre, ground floor non-residential uses, apartments,
mews dwellings and maisonettes and is due commence shortly. This phase is located
diagonally opposite Asda and lies between Albert Drive, Dartmouth Avenue and includes
part of Dartmouth Green.

PLANNING HISTORY

The most relevant planning history for this application is as follows:

PLAN/2018/0337 - Hybrid planning application (part outline, part full planning application) for the
demolition of 573 residential units and existing non-residential buildings and redevelopment of the
site to be implemented in phases to provide a mixed-use development comprising of 869 residents

Page 139



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

units (Class C3), 134 specialist residential units (Class C3/C2), 904 sgm community centre (Class
D1), 929 sgm nursery/children's centre (Class D1), 312 sgm health centre (Class D1), 290 sgm
additional classrooms (Class D1), 1,728 sqm of retail (flexible use within Class Al and/or A2 and/or
A3 and/or A4 and/or A5), 117sgm management office (flexible use within Class Al and/or A2 and/or
A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or Bla and/or SG), and 132 sgm dentist (flexible use within Class Al
and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or class D1), a new energy centre, formation of a new
car park for Broadmere Primary school, formation of an extended car park for Bishop David Brown
School and the Leisure Centre, including a bus/coach drop off area, formation of a new community
car park to serve community hub, hard and soft landscaping and open space with a kiosk, a multi-use
games area (MUGA) and a skate park, reconfigured and new vehicular and pedestrian access and
works to the public highway and associated works; including full planning application for the detailed
phases comprising of: demolition of 412 residential units and 7,609 sgm existing non-residential
buildings, and construction of 695 residential units (7 no. studios, 68 no. 1-bedroom specialist
accommodation, 160 no. 1-bed units, 227 no. 2-bed units, 160 no. 3-bed units, 71 no.4-bed units,
and 2 no. 5-bed units,), 904 sqm Community Centre (Class D1), 1,728 sqm of retail (flexible use
within Class Al and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5), 117sgm management office (flexible use
within Class Al and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or Bla and/or SG) and 132 sgm
dentist (flexible use within Class Al and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/ or class D1), 929
sgm of nursery/children’s centre (Class D1), 312 sgm health centre (Class D1), an energy centre,
formation of an extended car park for Bishop David Brown School and the Leisure Centre, including a
bus/coach drop of area, formation of a new community car park to serve community hub, hard and
soft landscaping and open space with a kiosk, a multi-use games area (MUGA) and a skate park
reconfigured and new vehicular and pedestrian access and works to the public highway and
associated works. Permitted 18.04.2019 subject to a S106 Legal Agreement and Executive
Obligations.

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

This conditions application seeks the approval of details pursuant to Conditions 39 (stag
beetle survey), 40 (bat activity survey) and 41 (reptile survey) of planning permission
PLAN/2018/0337 for phase Red only.

Submitted with the application is a Protected Species Survey Report relating to all three
conditions and shows that all of the existing dwellings within phase Red have been subject
to the ecological surveys.

CONSULTATIONS

Surrey Wildlife Trust: Condition 39 (stag beetle) — no further comments and the Council
may wish to discharge the planning condition. Condition 40 (bat survey) — notes the
applicant’s report regarding the use of Natural England’s EPS policy 4 and if the applicant’s
ecologist has confirmed in writing their confidence to the Council that they are confident as
to roost characterisation (i.e. low status roost of a common species) and that any likely
adverse impacts are capable of being mitigated and suitable compensation would be
achievable the Council may wish to accept the applicant’'s use of Policy 4 and consider
there is sufficient information to discharge the condition. Condition 41 (reptile survey) —
Notes the report comments and advises the applicant may wish to consider a precautionary
approach to working in respect of reptiles [Officer note: Details added as note to applicant in
recommendation].

REPRESENTATIONS

As this application seeks approval of details pursuant to a condition on a planning
permission, there is no statutory requirement for neighbour notification.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

Page 140



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

Woking Core Strategy 2012

CS7 — Biodiversity and Nature Conservation

PLANNING ISSUES

1.

The only issue to consider is whether the details submitted are considered acceptable to
comply with the requirements of Conditions 39 (stag beetle survey), 40 (bat activity
survey) and 41 (reptile survey). All of the existing 21 residential properties and
associated gardens were surveyed.

Condition 39 — stage beetle survey

2.

The gardens and green spaces within phase Red were appraised in October, November
and December 2020 for their suitability to support Stag Beetle populations. No suitable
woodland habitats or any dead or rooting wood were recorded within phase Red. As
such, no specific mitigation for this species is required.

Condition 40 — bat activity survey

3.

Internal and external surveys of the residential properties were undertaken in October,
November and December 2020 to ascertain their potential for use by bats and to search
for any sign of current or past bat use. In addition all trees within phase Red were
examined from ground level in October 2020 to identify features with potential to support
roosting bats and subsequently a single tree was subject to a tree climbing survey in
November 2020 on account of its potential roosting features and identified suitability.

No evidence of a bat roost, such as staining, droppings or the animals themselves, were
recorded in most of the buildings surveyed. The majority of loft voids lacked access
points and had a conspicuous presence of cobwebs indicating a lack of disturbance by
bats. Evidence of roosting bats was recorded within one dwelling (ref: Bl) as
approximately 50 bat droppings were recorded on the loft floor. The collected bat
droppings were subject to DNA testing and were identified as Common Pipistrelle
droppings. The relatively low number of scattered droppings suggests that a small
number of Common Pipistrelles have been roosting within this loft void. The tree
climbing survey of one tree identified as having potential roosting features recorded no
evidence of bats utilising the potential roosting features.

Based on the relatively low number of bat droppings recorded the roost is considered to
be a summer day roost for a small number of Common Pipistrelles. Nonetheless the
development proposals are expected to result in the loss of a single bat roost within the
loft void of building B1. Therefore a Natural England European Protected Species (EPS)
Licence will be require to undertake the demolition of building B1. The report advises
that it is intended that the licence application would be submitted under Natural
England’s Policy 4 for EPS mitigation licencing (where a lower standard survey effort
may be accepted where the cost or delays associated with standard survey
requirements would be disproportionate to the additional certainty it would bring; the
ecological impacts can be predicted with sufficient certainty and mitigation or
compensation will ensure that the licensed activity does not detrimentally affect the
conservation status of the local population of any EPS).

In this case the report advises that the buildings were subject to emergence surveys in
2017 and the entire site was subject to transect surveys, also in 2017. To undertake
further emergence/re-entry surveys on building B1 would cause significant delay to the
demolition, which would then cause significant financial implications (as these surveys

Page 141



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

can only be undertaken between May and September). The report advises that further
surveys would not provide any further certainty as to the size and significance of the bat
roost (as a limited number of bat droppings were found which were subject to DNA
testing) and thus the development will result in the loss of a small day roost of a species
of low conservation significance only. An appropriate mitigation strategy will be specified
in the licence application which will safeguard against the injury/killing of any Common
Pipistrelles through soft demolition of the roof structure and void of building B1 under a
watching brief of a licenced bat worker. In addition, new bat roosting opportunities will
also be provided in close proximity to building B1 to offer alternative roosting
opportunities. The numbers, models and location of the proposed bat boxes will be
specified in the licence application and be agreed with Natural England and this will
represent a net gain of roosting opportunities. A bat box will also be installed on a
suitable retained tree prior to demolition to ensure there is a safe alternative roosting site
that bats can be moved to during works. The report also advises that this approach is
also considered to allow the details pursuant to Condition 40 to be approved prior to the
licence application.

The landscaping proposals across the whole site will increase the diversity of habitats
and provide new foraging and dispersal opportunities for bats and create wildlife
corridors to improve connectivity to areas of interest for bats such as the Basingstoke
Canal. New bat boxes of various designs will also be installed across the site enhancing
roosting opportunities and lighting will be restricted through the construction phase
through the Construction and Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) and a sensitive
lighting scheme for the development will also limit light spill on features considered to be
of interest for bats.

Condition 41 — reptile survey

8.

The gardens and green spaces within phase Red were surveyed in October, November
and December for their suitability to support reptile populations. The green spaces within
the phase comprise of short mown amenity grassland and offer no suitability for reptiles.
Similarly the gardens of the existing dwellings comprise hard surfacing, amenity
grassland and planting and small elements of Bramble scrub. Since the properties have
become unoccupied the gardens have been left unmanaged resulting in a rougher grass
sward structure and some scrub development. However due to the recent unsuitable
habitat and the lack of connecting habitat the gardens are considered to offer no
suitability for reptiles. There is no reptile constraint to the removal of habitats within this
phase.

Nesting Birds

9.

10.

During the surveys for phase Red, a check survey was also made for the present of
nesting birds. Evidence of past nesting in trees and a loft void of one dwelling was
recorded. The report advises that all birds receive protection when nesting and suitable
nesting habitat should be removed outside of the nesting season. If this cannot be
achieved a check survey for nesting birds should be undertaken by an experienced
ecologist (Condition 56). As part of the development new open spaces will be
established along with shrub and tree planting, wildflower planting and new attenuation
features. These features will increase the diversity of habitats when compared to the
existing and provide new foraging and nesting opportunities. Bird boxes will also be
incorporated into the design of new buildings (Conditions 42 and 44).

The Surrey Wildlife Trust has reviewed the information submitted and has no comments
in respect of Condition 39 (stag beetle survey) and offers further advice for the applicant

Page 142



11.

02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

in respect of Condition 41 (reptile survey). In respect of Condition 40 (bat survey), the
Surrey Wildlife Trust have noted the comments in the report and have advised that if the
applicant’s ecologist has confirmed in writing their confidence to the Council as decision-
maker that they are confident as to roost characterisation (i.e. low status roost of a
common species) and that any likely adverse impacts to protected species are capable
of being mitigated and suitable compensation would be achievable on site given the low
numbers and species present, then in this circumstance, the Council may wish to accept
the applicant’'s use of Policy 4 and consider that there is sufficient information to
discharge condition 40 of the planning permission.

The applicant’'s Ecologist has subsequently advised that the “surveys undertaken
provide the necessary confidence to characterise the recorded roost and the impacts
that the proposed redevelopment of the Red Phase will have on this roost”. It is further
advised that “the recorded droppings were sent for analysis to confirm that they are
attributed to Common Pipistrelle and the number of droppings present is representative
of a small number of bats. The mitigation strategy proposed within the Protected
Species Survey Report will be agreed with Natural England and will ensure that adverse
impacts will be appropriately mitigated and the conservation status of the local bat
population is maintained. Compensation for the lost roost will be provided prior to the
demolition of the building supporting the roost, while further roost provisions will be
installed throughout the Phase Red redevelopment, as detailed in the Ecological
Enhancement Strategy, ultimately achieving a net gain in roosting opportunities post-
development.”

CONCLUSION

12.

In light of the above information and the comments from Surrey Wildlife Trust the details
submitted are considered acceptable and would meet the requirements of Conditions 39
(stag beetle survey), 40 (bat activity survey) and 41 (reptile survey). The submitted
details would also comply with Policy CS7 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012. The
details submitted are therefore recommended for approval as noted in the
recommendation below.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

File - COND/2020/0175

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that details submitted are APPROVED as follows:

Details approved are:

- Protected Species Survey Report (Red Phase) by Ecology Solutions, received on
04.12.2020; and
- Email from Ecologist/Agent dated 11.01.2021.

Notes to applicant:

The applicant should consider a precautionary approach to working to include:

- Any trenches left overnight will be covered or provided with ramps to prevent
common reptiles from becoming trapped.

- Any building materials such a bricks, stone etc. will be stored on pallets to
discourage reptiles from using them as shelter. Any demolition materials will be
stored in skips or similar containers rather than in piles on ground.

Page 143



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

Should any Reptiles be discovered during construction, which are likely to be
affected by the development, works will cease immediately. The applicant will then
seek the advice of a suitably qualified and experienced ecologist and works will only
proceed in accordance with the advice they provide.

The applicant is advised that the approved details relate to phase Red only and details

pursuant to this condition require LPA approval for all other phases of the development in
accordance with the requirements of the condition.

Page 144



o
Q

«Q

@

=
AN
0]

Beacon\
Council

ITEM 6h — COND/2020/0175

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive,
Sheerwater, Woking.

Partial approval of details pursuant to Conditions 39 (stag beetle
survey), 40 (bat activity survey) and 41 (reptile survey) for Phase Red
only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater
Regeneration.

/ 2007-2008 /
2005-2006 [21-ETelo]y N Promoting Sustainable  |31F:Telel) AN
Sustai.nableEne Authonty Comnice 1000 AUthOﬂty 2006-2009.
rgy the Planning Process Tackling Climate Change




Slide 44

Existing Dwellings (B1 — Bat droppings found)

— COND/2020/0175




Agenda Item 6i

Sheerwater Estate
Albert Drive, Sheerwater
Woking

COND/2020/0176

Approval of details pursuant to Condition 62 (external sports pitch lighting for the artificial
grass pitch) of planning permission PLAN/2018/0374 for the Sheerwater Regeneration, to
seek approval for alternative external sports pitch lighting only.

G v o e i B e

LA

Page 147






CREEY

COND/2020/0176
cyc
e
; WOKING

7 BOROUGH COUNCIL

| Sheerwater Estate, Albert Driy

A S
o A o Q;QZQY&YAV%':‘?éeé 52999909,
B SO RIRIRENIIKKE
B R A ISR IS EIIRIIRRK

R R R o S S ERIIIIRIIRIKIKIKS

R S RIS

S R R RN

AR I R R R RIIRIRIKIHKIKRNKS

7 R R SRR BRI SEIEXIERICRIIIRIRAKIKKIE

' O 0 0020 e te e e e e e vete
SRRRHKS :

P
S

O
&
S

5
DO
s
X >

I

N
SEBERRNN

&
K

odetotednstereiote!
e S e
RN
AR
SRR
RS
RRSEERIRIS IS

X

& .
SKEPERX XX IR X s
g 0,’:90‘0‘000'0“&2@0

RS
200,
RS
IS

55

9305958,

RS
3RS
RS
5
%

AVAN
O
XA

.;:‘f s
SRR

K2 :,V-A

AR

7074 %%. )
BROREIKHR
SRR

8 Vo =

o
SRR

¢ % ORI PSR KK LR
S N I

% CLX 5P
SO R PN SN2 \\>
K RRE KRCREIR K KA IR KKK SRS
R e GO
S Sares L TN Yo S
SIS RN R >N
R AR AT \ TR,
o 4l o \/\\ \/“ '}“(,
N
AR (LN A2
; SR \
A e

%
N

Comments
",
2 Not Set
: : ' e T Honee T Lk
; nl &
§ Mavaadnack He
Sy N,
ark<Orchard \ N
usiness Park )
R N <
/I/? "\ '.fE
s 0 Al
A0 SCALE 1:6,000
- =
PR 7 /,I'J'
Pl N ’” 0 25 50 100 150 200

I Vetres

Golf Club ® .« Planning
N ——_1 —L;~| Woking Borough Council
#" Ess Ofr_,W.m!Lf | civic Offices
/3 !

Gloucester Square

WiLe /:
© Crown L ARG and multiple / r_j!_lf Woking, Surrey GU21 6YL
residence data which is owned by Royal Mail Group Limited and / or Royal Mail Group PLC. All Rights Reserved, Licence no. 100025452.

(TR T ] T R ot I,







02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

6i COND/2020/0176 WARD: C

LOCATION: Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking

PROPOSAL: Approval of details pursuant to Condition 62 (external sports pitch
lighting for the artificial grass pitch) of planning permission
PLAN/2018/0374 for the Sheerwater Regeneration, to seek approval for
alternative external sports pitch lighting only.

APPLICANT: Pellikaan Construction OFFICER: Joanne Hollingdale

REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE

Although the applicant is the contractor for the Leisure Centre phase of the Sheerwater
Regeneration, legal advice is that this conditions application falls outside the Scheme of
Delegation and thus such applications are required to be determined by the Planning
Committee.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Condition 62 (external
sports pitch lighting for the artificial grass pitch) of planning permission PLAN/2018/0374 for
the Sheerwater Regeneration, to seek approval for alternative external sports pitch lighting
only.

PLANNING STATUS

Urban Area

Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km)
Priority Place

Flood Zone 1 and 2 (some areas)

Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area & SSSI
Urban Open Space

Local Centre

RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE details submitted.

SITE DESCRIPTION

This conditions application relates to the Leisure Centre phase of the Sheerwater
Regeneration. This phase relates to the Leisure Centre which is almost complete and is
located within the grounds of Bishop David Brown School. The Leisure Centre phase also
includes the sports pitches within the school grounds including the new (3G) artificial grass
pitch, which was approved with external sports pitch lighting.

PLANNING HISTORY

The most relevant planning history for this application is as follows:

PLAN/2018/0374 - Section 73 application to remove Condition 26 (bund), to vary Condition 4
(approved plans insofar as they relate to the Leisure Centre and sports pitches), Condition 23 (phase

Page 151



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

1b playing fields timeline), to submit details to satisfy Condition 21 (on/off-site drainage works),
Condition 27 (drainage details for phase 1a(i)), Condition 28 (drainage details for phase 1a(ii)),
Condition 29 (drainage details for phase 1a(iii)), Condition 30 (drainage details for phase 1b),
Condition 52 (external materials for Leisure Centre), Condition 53 (details of finished floor levels for
Leisure Centre), Condition 54 (sustainability - substitution of combined heat and power plant with a
ground source heat pump) and amendments to wording of Condition 36 (phase 1c details of front
boundary enclosures), Condition 38 (phase 1c biodiversity enhancement measures), Condition 43
(phase 1c external materials), Condition 45 (phase 1c details of bin storage areas), Condition 46
(phase 1c details of photovoltaic panels), Condition 47 (phase 1c sustainability measures), Condition
49 (protection of residential properties from noise), Condition 51 (phase 1c details of play area/trim
trail delivery) to alter the timing for the submission of details for approval, of planning permission
PLAN/2015/1260 for the redevelopment of the Sheerwater Estate. Permitted 18.04.2019 subject to a
S106 Legal Agreement and Executive Obligations.

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Condition 62 (external
sports pitch lighting for the artificial grass pitch) of planning permission PLAN/2018/0374 for
the Sheerwater Regeneration, to seek approval for alternative external sports pitch lighting
only.

The submitted details include plans of the (3G) artificial grass pitch showing the positions of
the lighting columns, plans showing the light spillage, comparison spillage plans with the
previously approved details, an external lighting design note and a letter from the applicant’s
Ecologist.

The external sports pitch lighting has already been installed on the site.

CONSULTATIONS

Sport England: We have reviewed the submitted details and consulted with the Football
Foundation/Football Association and are satisfied that the information submitted complies
with the relevant technical guidance. No objection is raised to the condition being
discharged.

WBC Environmental Health Officer: There are no concerns to raise for this application.
Surrey Wildlife Trust: Provided that the applicant undertakes the actions as detailed in the
submitted plans and letter form Ecology Solutions (23 November 2020), we would advise
that the information provided is considered to be sufficient to meet the requirements of
condition 62.

REPRESENTATIONS

As this application seeks approval of details pursuant to a condition on a planning
permission, there is no statutory requirement for neighbour notification.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

Woking Core Strategy 2012

CS7 - Biodiversity and nature conservation

CS17 - Open space, green infrastructure and sport and recreation
CS21 — Design

DM Policies DPD
DM5 — Environmental Pollution

Page 152



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

DM7 — Noise and Light Pollution

PLANNING ISSUES

1.

The only issue to consider is whether the details submitted are acceptable to comply
with the requirements of Condition 62. Only the artificial grass pitch is to be lit with
external sports pitch lighting. Under the original planning permission for the site
PLAN/2015/1260, a planning condition required the details of the sports pitch lighting to
be approved by the Local Planning Authority and this was so approved under
COND/2018/0021 on 24.01.2019. When the subsequent Section 73 application was
approved under PLAN/2018/0374 the condition was amended to require implementation
in accordance with the previously approved details unless otherwise approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority.

It is understood that further approval is how being sought for alternative sports pitch
lighting due to the improvements made to this technology in the interim. In addition the
position of one lighting column is amended to enable easier access for maintenance (the
column closest to the canal would be positioned to the east of the centre line of the pitch
instead of aligning with the centre line of the pitch). The applicant has advised that the
revised scheme submitted for approval has the following benefits:

e Arrevised LED light fitting is proposed;

e The quantity of light fittings is reduced by six (from 18no. to 12no. equating to 2no.
per lighting column);

e The new model is aesthetically similar to the previous model with roughly equal
lumen output ratios;

e The previously approved floodlighting system was to show 1 lux approximately at
91m metre from the centre of the pitch while the new proposed model is to be 1
lux at a maximum of 66m from the centre, a reduction of 27% of the 1 lux contour;

e Total power and running costs are reduced;

e There is less lighting overspill onto surrounding areas; and

¢ Reduced glare.

The details submitted by the applicant advise that the lighting calculations achieve the
requirement set out in the planning permission and the canal remains a dark corridor
with diffused lighting levels between 2.5 and 1 lux past the modelled tree line. The canal
will have a horizontal lux reading no higher than 0.3 lux. It should also be noted that
some additional planting is to be provided to the north of the sports pitches which has
not been taken account of in the modelling, which should further reduce light spill to the
canal. There is no change to the approved number of lighting columns (6no. which
would be coloured black) or their height (15m). The hours of use of the external sports
pitch lighting is controlled by Condition 114 on planning permission PLAN/2018/0374
and this will not change.

In addition to the above the applicant has also advised that the external lighting will be
on a timer to automatically switch off outside the approved hours of use. In addition the
lighting will also be controlled by photocell to ensure external lighting is held off whilst
daylight levels are sufficient.

The planning condition relating to the sports pitch lighting enables the LPA to assess the
details having regard to the requirements to light the sports pitch, neighbour amenity
and ecology. In this regard neither Sport England, the Council’s Environmental Health
Officer, nor the Surrey Wildlife Trust have raised any objections to the revised details
submitted. As noted above the revised details would result in 27% reduction of the 1 lux
contour resulting in less overspill and the applicant’s Ecologist has reviewed the revised

Page 153



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

details and advised that it is “clear that the design will result in reduced light spill from
that previously considered to be acceptable. | am therefore satisfied that the amended
scheme will not give rise to significant adverse effects on bats.”

CONCLUSION

6.

In light of the above comments the details submitted are considered acceptable and
would meet the requirements of Condition 62. No objections have been raised to the
submitted details by any consultee. The submitted details are also considered to comply
with Policies CS7, CS17 and CS21 of the Woking Core Strategy 2012, Policies DM5
and DM7 of the DM Policies DPD 2016 and the NPPF. The details submitted are
therefore recommended for approval as noted in the recommendation below.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

File - COND/2020/0176

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that details submitted are APPROVED as follows:

Details approved:

- 3G pitch layout plan by Pozzoni (drawing no. 4235-02_0912 Rev J) received on

07.12.2020 (except for turnstiles which are to form part of a separate application for
LPA approval);

Elevations/Sections of pitches and lighting columns ‘Multi-Use Games Pitch, Sections’
by BDP (drawing no. SHE-BDP-00-XX-SE-L-00-0021 Rev PO04) received on
07.12.2020;

Spill plan (drawing no. HLS05710 Rev 5 Spill Background) received on 07.12.2020;

Football pitch layout showing elevations of lights (drawing no. HLS05710 Rev 9)
received on 07.12.2020;

Horizontal Spill plan (drawing no. HLS05710 Rev 9) received on 07.12.2020;

Horizontal/Vertical Spill plan (drawing no. HLS05710 Rev 9) received on 07.12.2020;

Lux plan for pitch (drawing no. HLS05710 Rev 9) received on 07.12.2020;

Setting out plan received on 07.12.2020;

Spill plan — vertical at 0.5m (drawing no. HLS05710 Rev 9) received on 07.12.2020;

Photo of Philips BVP LED received on 07.12.2020;

Sports pitch landscape proposals (except for position of floodlighting columns which
shall be as shown on plans approved above) (drawing no. SHE-BDP-00-XX-PL-L-
90-0130 Rev P04) received on 07.12.2020;

Spill comparison plan — Rev 9 (drawing no. HLS05710) received on 17.12.2020;

CalcuLuX Area 7.9.0.0 report (ref: 1211) received on 07.12.2020;

Photo of light fittings received 09.12.2020;

Letter from Ecologist by Ecology Solutions dated 23.11.2020 received on 10.12.2020;

Technical Note relating to external lighting by Ramboll dated 26.11.2020 received on
10.12.2020;

Email from agent received with Spill Comparison plan received 17.12.2020; and

Email from agent dated 14.01.2021 confirming sports lighting will be on a timer switch
to ensure compliance with the hours of use and a photocell light monitoring
equipment will also be installed. Note to applicant: Even within authorised hours of
use the external sports lighting should be switched off when not in use.

Note to applicant: The applicant is advised that the development is required to be
implemented in accordance with the approved details.

Page 154



o
Q
«Q
@
=
ol
0]

Beacon\

Council

ITEM 61 — COND/2020/0176

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive,
Sheerwater, Woking.

Approval of details pursuant to Condition 62 (external sports pitch
lighting for the artificial grass pitch) of planning permission
PLAN/2018/0374 for the Sheerwater Regeneration, to seek approval for
alternative external sports pitch lighting only.

eacon romo ing Sustainable
2005-2006 mm n ties Thmu
Sustainable Energy AUthonty ning Pmcesi

Beacor_l \ s
AUthonty Tackling Climate Change




Slide 46

Sports Pitch Layout Plan — COND/2020/0176




Slide 47

Comparison Light Spill Plan — COND/2020/0176

ORIGINAL SPILL LEGEND
Isolines
— 10 lx
2.5 Ix
— 50 Ix
75 x|
100 x |1
25.0 lx
—— 300 Ix
1000 1= |7
2000 1x
3000 x|+

——

—~ * . D = - v . . D
27! * 218 ")96‘"‘(17'0 *16. -42Az2 |[p5H BIaReT B57 264 B35 B 7

- -, - - . - - 0 f= 1

i s o
| 71 2744 2346 219 1B IBE (217 f2l9 239 @37 aed) B @ 248 @a4 358 7

& , | ST ol T e
7, 258,951, 345, 220 /185 (163 173 Rog/ 200 [217 Leas paz pu2 15j;m 13/5

|

D Y S N A
., } . {

o ) P3T/253 484197 164 142 160 179 187 Y208 2 Tl
I | 23z ;ﬁ‘ 153 133 1 0 175 179 184
(ﬂ / { .S\A P & rﬁ\la / Yl

3 {
1 %46 ] le2 127 152\, 4 187 [191 BB [62 166 181
- )

off o el A\ ol - e A s = -
\ 9 ] %62 Afieln 178 180 1??’ \196 194 1".1\5 174 181 19
I | e % v %/ e '\ ¢ ¢ ¢
\ i \
| \\ | 46 0 9 o EBO0 192 A6 ) 18 1192 184 185 2
| 2do y -._.-'4\ P w e A 'R H ‘s J
261 Y270 ?/U/E'IB/E‘E; 23 232 2 231 fBI] 230 185 19 23 E{
IS 250 W SR A, e Nech )
3 E?'d" 53 /jJ'S 237l zoe 240 2301238 |253 r4l 221 |19
i =l . .
I RY )é( 257" 239 ;12 % 2an ¥ Ten 210 “242 *g70 [2e3/ 22 ‘Sax o
| i :) At e . P, o
| 2. 454820162 *157 *148 *171 9 & B48 ROWPEE 156 T
B—— e Y
- - .0







Agenda Item 6]

Sheerwater Estate
Albert Drive, Sheerwater
Woking

COND/2021/0013

Partial approval of details pursuant to Condition 45 (external materials) for the hard surfacing
materials for Phase Purple only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater
Regeneration.

o N

EMERALD

‘YAN (b)

YELLOW

PURPLE

Page 159






.~ Recycling o P
2”4 COND/2021/0013

&h

&=5

WOKING

BOROUGH COUNCIL

-«

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Dri

iy

e
RRG T r ety

% 0‘000‘0 & 2l 3 ;“\
’0:0’0"‘ Recreation Mast

N

2
Broadmiered
CoRRRIE

ﬂ""
%,

By )
I S
ARSI
PRSI S
Dedoeln! o2eSa%eTe 0%
RSN

AL
95%%
&

SOSRE
AR
RS

—

SR ARIIRA
2 7 \
AN
SCBBRBRDE
S %

’V
XXX
PR

RSN
%
%

sl

: R
* \’3 & : ‘;:0
SESKLONGS
’

=
2059,

Comments

S = Not Set

El
o

SCALE 1:6,000

— o 25 50 100 150 200
T | S S N Vetres

NS

g ~
AN

/ | Planning
2N . j 2 [ | Woking Borough Council
\ 3 % Sf %}\\,/ Civic Offices

e S ) — 4 AN T_\ITL Gloucester Square
%l © Crown copyright and database rights 2021 Ordnance Survey 100025452. This product is p'r-ol reaﬂ.l:obFJF and multiple Point Woking, Surrey GU21 6YL

residence data which is owned by Royal Mail Group Limited and / or Royal Mail Group PLC. All Rights Reserved, Licence no. 100025452.
£ ! <A, i~ % /- [ \ <
Se A AN P /4 / AHSGS ) A RI A

A
=

AN







02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

6] COND/2021/0013 WARD: C

LOCATION: Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Sheerwater, Woking

PROPOSAL: Partial approval of details pursuant to Condition 45 (external materials)
for the hard surfacing materials for Phase Purple only of planning

permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater Regeneration.

APPLICANT: Gilbert Ash OFFICER: Joanne Hollingdale

REASON FOR REFERRAL TO COMMITTEE

Although the applicant is the contractor for phase Purple of the Sheerwater Regeneration,
legal advice is that this conditions application falls outside the Scheme of Delegation and
thus such applications are required to be determined by the Planning Committee.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Condition 45 (external
materials) for the hard surfacing materials for Phase Purple only of planning permission
PLAN/2018/0337.

PLANNING STATUS

Urban Area

Thames Basin Heaths SPA Zone B (400m-5km)
Priority Place

Flood Zone 1 and 2 (some areas)

Basingstoke Canal Conservation Area & SSSI
Urban Open Space

Local Centre

RECOMMENDATION

APPROVE details submitted.

SITE DESCRIPTION

This conditions application relates to the first phase of the residential development for the
Sheerwater Regeneration. The first residential phase, known as phase Purple is under
construction. This phase is located opposite Asda and lies between Albert Drive,
Devonshire Avenue and Bunyard Drive.

PLANNING HISTORY

The most relevant planning history for this application is as follows:

PLAN/2018/0337 - Hybrid planning application (part outline, part full planning application) for the
demolition of 573 residential units and existing non-residential buildings and redevelopment of the
site to be implemented in phases to provide a mixed-use development comprising of 869 residents
units (Class C3), 134 specialist residential units (Class C3/C2), 904 sgm community centre (Class
D1), 929 sgm nursery/children's centre (Class D1), 312 sqm health centre (Class D1), 290 sgm
additional classrooms (Class D1), 1,728 sqm of retail (flexible use within Class Al and/or A2 and/or
A3 and/or A4 and/or A5), 117sgm management office (flexible use within Class Al and/or A2 and/or

Page 163



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or Bla and/or SG), and 132 sgm dentist (flexible use within Class Al
and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or class D1), a new energy centre, formation of a new
car park for Broadmere Primary school, formation of an extended car park for Bishop David Brown
School and the Leisure Centre, including a bus/coach drop off area, formation of a new community
car park to serve community hub, hard and soft landscaping and open space with a kiosk, a multi-use
games area (MUGA) and a skate park, reconfigured and new vehicular and pedestrian access and
works to the public highway and associated works; including full planning application for the detailed
phases comprising of: demolition of 412 residential units and 7,609 sqm existing non-residential
buildings, and construction of 695 residential units (7 no. studios, 68 no. 1-bedroom specialist
accommodation, 160 no. 1-bed units, 227 no. 2-bed units, 160 no. 3-bed units, 71 no.4-bed units,
and 2 no. 5-bed units,), 904 sgm Community Centre (Class D1), 1,728 sqm of retail (flexible use
within Class Al and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5), 117sgm management office (flexible use
within Class Al and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/or Bla and/or SG) and 132 sgm
dentist (flexible use within Class Al and/or A2 and/or A3 and/or A4 and/or A5 and/ or class D1), 929
sgm of nursery/children’s centre (Class D1), 312 sgm health centre (Class D1), an energy centre,
formation of an extended car park for Bishop David Brown School and the Leisure Centre, including a
bus/coach drop of area, formation of a new community car park to serve community hub, hard and
soft landscaping and open space with a kiosk, a multi-use games area (MUGA) and a skate park
reconfigured and new vehicular and pedestrian access and works to the public highway and
associated works. Permitted 18.04.2019 subject to a S106 Legal Agreement and Executive
Obligations.

COND/2020/0010 — Partial approval of details pursuant to condition 45 (external materials)
for facing brick only for Phase Purple only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the
Sheerwater Regeneration. Approved 22.01.2020

COND/2020/0047 - Partial approval of details pursuant to condition 45 (external materials)
for the metal standing seam cladding (and rain screen cladding), reconstituted stone band,
glazing frames, perforated panels and guardrails for Phase Purple only of planning
permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater Regeneration. Approved 09.04.2020

COND/2020/0062 - Partial approval of details pursuant to condition 45 (external materials)
for the perforated panel design for the apartment building and townhouses for Phase Purple
only of planning permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater Regeneration. Approved
27.05.2020

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT

This conditions application seeks approval of details pursuant to Condition 45 (external
materials) for the hard surfacing materials for Phase Purple only of planning permission
PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater Regeneration.

Details and samples of all of the proposed hard surfacing materials for phase Purple have
been provided with the application as follows:

Material Areato be used Proposed Material
Reference
RO1 Main Road Concrete Asphalt Road (black) (sample
not provided/required)
P06 Block Paving - Accessto | Tobermore Sienna 60mm  Graphite
Podium Car Park colour
P07 Concrete Block paving - Tobermore Hydropave Sienna Duo Silver
Public realm footway along | colour
Albert Drive, Devonshire
Avenue and Bunyard Drive
P09 Permeable Concrete Block | Tobermore Hydropave Tegular Duo Slate

Page 164



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

paving — On street Parking
bays

Grey colour (permeable)

P13 Self-binding permeable Breddon Gravel Golden Amber Colour
gravel to Murray Green (permeable)
paths/within open space
p22 Concrete Block Paving Tobermore Sienna 60mm Silver Colour
(Footway/highway rain
garden margins)
P26 Permeable Concrete Block | Tobermore Hydropave Tegular Duo
Paving — Private residential | Cedar Colour (permeable)
gardens ground floor (front
gardens/terraces)
P40 ‘No-dig’ Permeable Block | Tobermore Hydropave Sienna Duo Silver
paving Colour (permeable)
P41 Tactile Paving — pedestrian | Tobermore Tactile Blister Flags Buff
crossing points Colour
P4la Tactile Paving Tobermore Hazard Warning Flags Buff
Colour
K1 Conservation Concrete Tobermore GB Country Kerb Granite
Kerb (flush) Colour
K2 Conservation Concrete Tobermore GB Country Kerb Granite
Kerb (125mm show) Colour
K3 Conservation Concrete Tobermore Country Edging Granite
edging Colour
K12 Double height Conservation | Tobermore GB Country Kerb Granite
Concrete Kerb Colour
K16 Conservation Concrete Tobermore GB Country Kerb Granite
Kerb (150mm upstand) to | Colour
Podium level
p27 Concrete Block Paving — | Tobermore Hydropave Tegular Duo
Podium gardens to town Cedar Colour (permeable)
houses
P29 Stepping stones — Podium | Tobermore  Fusion  Silver  Colour
landscaping (permeable)
P30 Concrete Block Paving — | Tobermore Hydropave Tegular Duo
Podium landscaping central | Bracken Colour (permeable)
seating area
P34 Concrete Slab paving — Tobermore Hydropave Textured Flags
Podium paving and Slab Paving Natural Colour (permeable)
Apartment Terrace level 5
RS2 Rubber Wet Pour Safety | Wet Pour Safety Surfacing Earth Blend
Surfacing — Podium Colour (permeable)
landscaping
MO1 Metal edging to Podium Corten (rust colour)
landscaped areas
MO02 Metal edging to Podium, Corten (rust colour)

raised planting beds

Aluminium decking -
Balcony levels 1-4

AliDeck Senior Balcony Board Sand
Colour

All in accordance with the samples received by the Local Planning Authority on
20.01.2021 and materials to be used in areas as shown on the plans submitted with this

application.

CONSULTATIONS

Page 165




02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

None required

REPRESENTATIONS

As this application seeks approval of details pursuant to a condition on a planning
permission, there is no statutory requirement for neighbour notification.

RELEVANT PLANNING POLICIES

Woking Core Strateqy 2012
CS21 — Design
CS24 — Woking’s Landscape and Townscape

PLANNING ISSUES

1. The only issue to consider is whether the details submitted are acceptable to comply
with the requirements of Condition 45 relating to the hard surfacing materials. It can be
noted from the planning history that the other external materials for the phase were
approved last year.

2. The proposed hard surfacing materials reflect the hard surfacing material types as
specified on the plans approved under PLAN/2018/0337. All of the hard surfacing
materials for the public realm areas follow a grey, silver grey and granite colour palette,
except for the functional blister/warning flags. The public realm hard surfacing materials
are considered to be complimentary to the external materials for the apartments and
dwellings and would provide a high quality finish for the hard surfacing areas for the
phase. This palette of materials is also considered to tone in well (albeit with a lighter
colour) with the retained footway surfacing materials outside of the application site,
which the new surfacing will abut.

3. For the more ‘private’ and communal areas of the development e.g. front gardens,
terraces, communal podium landscaped area and private balconies etc. there is some
slight variation in the colours of the hard surfacing materials to reflect the different uses
of these areas and to provide sufficient visual interest to the communal podium garden
area. The variation in the colour includes the use of natural slab paving and slightly
warmer tone colours of ‘Cedar’ and ‘Bracken’ paving to express different areas of the
podium. The Corten metal surfacing to be used for the raised planters and edging would
provide an attractive warm (rust) colour for these features. These hard surfacing
materials are also considered to be of high quality and would reflect the overall
character of the development.

4. Overall the proposed materials are considered to provide an attractive and high quality
finish for the hard surfacing materials which the other later phases of the development
will be able to reflect where consistency is required and be complimentary where
variations are required to suit the approved design approach. Whilst the development is
being constructed in phases, the hard surfacing materials should blend through the later
phases so that the appearance of the development is coherent and of high quality.

CONCLUSION

5. The details submitted are therefore considered to be acceptable and would meet the
requirements of Condition 45 relating to the hard surfacing materials. The submitted
details are also considered to comply with Policies CS21 and CS24 of the Woking Core

Page 166



02 FEBRUARY 2021 PLANNING COMMITTEE

Strategy 2012 and the NPPF. The details submitted are therefore recommended for
approval as noted in the recommendation below.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

File - COND/2021/0013

RECOMMENDATION

It is recommended that details submitted are APPROVED as follows:

Details approved:

- The hard surfacing material schedule detailing the approved materials including brand
name, product and colour is attached to this decision letter; all materials to be in
accordance with the samples as received by the Local Planning Authority on
20.01.2021 [Officer Note: Schedule to be as detailed in the proposed development
section of this report]

External Paving Materials Report by Tri External Landscape Design (ref: SHE-TRI-PO-
XX-RP-L-90-1033) received by the Local Planning Authority on 21.01.2021,;

General Arrangement — Phase Purple Level 00 Areas of Paved Surface (SHE-TRI-PO-
00-PL-L-90-0033) received by the Local Planning Authority on 21.01.2021;

General Arrangement — Phase Purple 1% Floor Areas of Paved Surface (SHE-TRI-PO-
01-PL-L-90-0031) received by the Local Planning Authority on 21.01.2021;

Apartment and Balcony Terrace Finishes (SHE-WIA-P1-XX-PL-A-01_0028 Rev A)
received by the Local Planning Authority on 21.01.2021, and

AliDeck Senior Balcony Board Specification Data Sheet received by the Local
Planning Authority on 21.01.2021; and

Photograph of AliDeck board in Sand Colour as confirmed by email dated 21.01.2020
and all received by the Local Planning Authority on 21.01.2021.

Note to applicant: The applicant is advised that the approved details relate to phase Purple
only and details pursuant to this condition require LPA approval for all other phases of the
development in accordance with the requirements of the condition.

Page 167






ITEM 6] — COND/2021/0013

Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive,
Sheerwater, Woking.

o
&b
«Q
@D
|—\
©)]
©

Partial approval of details pursuant to Condition 45 (external materials)
for the hard surfacing materials for Phase Purple only of planning
permission PLAN/2018/0337 for the Sheerwater Regeneration.

¢ o

eacon\ eacon romo ing Sustainable
HBN 2005-2006 Thro

Council Sistaab Enery Authonty '""’"n;sp Uil

Beacor_l \ o0a
AUthonty Tackling Climate Change






SECTION C
APPLICATION REPORTS NOT TO BE
PRESENTED BY OFFICERS UNLESS REQUESTED

BY A MEMBER OF THE COMMITTEE

(Note: Ordnance Survey Extracts appended to the reports are for locational
purposes only and may not include all current developments either major or
minor within the site or the area generally)

Page 171






	Agenda
	5 Planning and Enforcement Appeals
	6 Planning Applications
	Table of Contents

	 Section A - Applications for Public Speaking
	 Section B - Application reports to be introduced by Officers
	6a 2019/1168 23 Bentham Avenue, Woking
	6aa Site plan
	6a 19.1168  23 Bentham Avenue
	6a 19.1168  23 Bentham Avenue slide numbered.

	6b 2020/1124  Units 1 & 2 Morris House, Commercial Way, Woking.
	6ba Site plan
	6b 20.1124 Units 1 and 2 Morris House
	6b 20.1124  Units 1 and 2 Morris House slide numbered.

	6c 2020/0805  Glades House, Cemetery Pales, Brookwood, Woking
	6ca Site plan
	6c 20.0805 Glades House, Cemetery Pales
	6c 20.0805 Glades House, Cemetery Pales slide numbered.

	6d COND/20/0128  9-13 Poole Road, Goldsworth Road and Church Street West, Woking
	6da Site plan
	6d COND.2020.0128  9-13 Poole Road
	6d COND.2020.0128  9-13 Poole Road slide numbered.

	6e COND/20/0149  Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking.
	6ea Site plan
	6e COND.2020.0149 Sheerwater Estate Red phase Condition 15 piling
	6e COND.2020.0149 Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive slide numbered.

	6f COND/20/0150  Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking.
	6fa Site plan
	6f COND.2020.0150 Sheerwater Red phase Condition 19 Air Quality
	6f COND.2020.0150 Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive slide numbered.

	6g COND/20/0171  Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking.
	6ga Site plan
	6g COND.2020.0171 Sheerwater Red phase Condition 25 Contam
	6g COND.2020.0171 Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive slide numbered.

	6h COND/20/0175  Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking.
	6ha Site plan
	6h COND.2020.0175 Sheerwater Red phase Conditions 39 40 and 41 Ecology
	6h COND.2020.0175 Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive slide numbered.

	6i COND/20/0176  Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking.
	6ia Site plan
	6i COND.2020.0176 Sheerwater Leisure Condition 62
	6i COND.2020.0176 Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive slide numbered.

	6j COND/21/0013  Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive, Woking
	6ja Site plan
	6j COND.2021.0013 Sheerwater Estate Condition 45
	6j COND.2021.0013 Sheerwater Estate, Albert Drive slide numbered.

	 Section C - Application Reports not to be introduced by officers unless requested by a Member of the Committee

